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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Directors’ report

Results and dividends

The consolidated profit and loss account on page 9
shows a profit attributable to shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2004 of £2,410 million. An
interim dividend of £599 million for the year ended
31 December 2004 was paid on 24 September
2004. A second interim dividend of £1,314 million
will be paid on 24 March 2005.

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries provide a wide range of
banking and financial services through branches and
offices in the UK and overseas.

Business review

Profit before tax for the Lloyds TSB Bank Group was
£3,523 million, a decrease of £848 million
compared with £4,371 million in 2003. This
decrease was attributable to the impact of the profit
on the sale and trading results of a number of
overseas businesses sold, which contributed
£1,183 million in 2003.

To enable meaningful comparisons with 2003,
it is appropriate to exclude the impact of these 2003
disposals, together with the investment variance and
changes in economic assumptions in the Group’s life
assurance businesses. On this basis, as a result of
earnings growth in each business unit, profit before
tax increased by £293 million, or 9 per cent, to
£3,378 million.

Strong growth in loans and advances to
customers and banks led to an 11 per cent increase
in total assets to £281.7 billion. The Group’s strategy
to increase retail lending, particularly in mortgages,
credit cards and personal loans, was reflected in a
14 per cent increase in loans and advances to
customers to £156.0 billion. Customer deposits
increased by £5.4 billion, or 5 per cent, to
£122.4 billion, largely as a result of an 11 per cent
growth in current account credit balances.

Group net interest income from continuing
operations increased by £180 million, or 4 per cent
reflecting strong consumer lending and mortgage
growth, and increased lending to corporates.

Cost control continues to have a high priority
throughout the Group and during 2004 costs, on a
continuing operations basis, increased by only
1 per cent, reflecting good progress in a number of
efficiency related initiatives.

Notwithstanding substantial growth in loans
and advances to customers, the provisions charge for
bad and doubtful debts within the Group’s continuing
operations was £866 million, 2 per cent lower than in

2003 and, as a result, the Group’s provisions charge
expressed as a percentage of average lending
improved to 0.59 per cent, compared with
0.66 per cent in 2003.

Profit before tax from UK Retail Banking
increased by £185 million, or 13 per cent, to
£1,655 million, compared with £1,470 million in
2003, supported by continued strong growth in the
Group's consumer lending portfolios, partly offset by
product margin erosion, higher current account credit
balances, improved current account fee income, tight
cost control and a lower provision for customer
redress. Excluding the impact of provisions for
customer redress, profit before tax in UK Retail
Banking increased by 5 per cent, with income
growth of 4 per cent and cost growth of 1 per cent.

Operating  profit  from  Insurance and
Investments, excluding investment variance and
changes in economic assumptions, increased by
37 per cent to £774 million, from £566 million in
2003. Excluding the impact of an £88 million
reduction in provisions for customer redress, profit
before tax from our life, pensions and unit trust
businesses increased by £106 million, or 21 per cent,
to £617 million. The Group’s strategy to improve its
profit mix by focusing on more profitable, less capital
intensive, business whilst constantly seeking to
improve process and distribution efficiency has led
toa 21 per cent increase in new business contribution
to £188 million. As a result of this focus, strong sales
of pensions and single premium investments in the
second half of 2004, and a reduced emphasis on
certain lower return products, the life and pensions
new business margin increased to 28.6 per cent, from
25.8 per cent in 2003. Profit before tax, excluding
investment variance, from our general insurance
operations increased by £7 million, or 5 per cent, to
£160 million.

Wholesale and International Banking pre-tax
profit, excluding profit/loss on sale of businesses and
trading results of discontinued operations, increased
by £219 million, or 21 per cent, to £1,259 million,
from £1,040 million in 2003. On the same basis,
income growth of 5 per cent exceeded cost growth of
2 per cent. Our focus on cross-selling and capital
efficiency has led to an increase in the post-tax return
on average risk-weighted assets to 1.42 per cent
compared with 1.23 per cent in 2003.
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Business review (continued)

In Wholesale, there was strong profit growth in
Corporate Markets, Business Banking and Asset
Finance, in addition to a reduction in provisions for
bad and doubtful debts. In International Banking,
profit before tax, excluding the loss on sale of
businesses and trading results of discontinued
operations, increased by £27 million to
£157 million, reflecting a £45 million reduction in
provisions.

Shareholders’ funds increased by £323 million,
or 3 per cent, to £11,056 million. Risk-weighted
assets increased by 12 per cent to £132.2 billion,
reflecting strong growth in consumer lending and
mortgages, higher lending in Corporate Markets and
the acquisition of a UK corporate loan portfolio from
Danske Bank, and at the end of 2004, the risk asset
ratios, the international standard for measuring capital
adequacy, were 9.9 per cent for total capital and
9.7 per cent for tier 1 capital. Profit retentions for
2004 totalled £497 million.

FRS 27

In December 2004 the UK Accounting Standards

Board (‘ASB’) issued FRS 27 Life Assurance setting

out changes to the way in which life assurance

business should be accounted for and requiring
certain additional disclosures; this standard is
effective for accounting years ending on or after

23 December 2005. Although technically not

applicable to those reporting under International

Financial Reporting Standards in 2005, under the

terms of a Memorandum of Understanding entered

into between leading members of the life assurance
and bancassurance sectors and the Association of

British Insurers and the ASB, the Group has

committed to implementing the requirements of

FRS 27 in 2005 and providing additional

disclosures in its 2004 accounts. These disclosures

are set out below.
Following the implementation of FRS 27 in

2005 the Group will be required to:

e exclude from the value of in-force business
recognised in the balance sheet any amounts
that reflect future investment margins; and

e measure the liabilities of the Scottish Widows
With-Profits Fund in accordance with the FSA’s
realistic capital regime, subject to certain specified
adjustments. Consequential adjustments are
made to the related assets.

The exclusion of future investment margins will
result in an adjustment to retained earnings as at

1 January 2004 and will lead to increased volatility in

the reported income from long-term assurance
buinsss.
The principal subsidiaries involved in the

Group's life assurance operations during the year
were Scottish Widows plc (‘Scottish Widows', the
Group’s principal provider of life assurance, pensions
and investment products, which holds the only large
With-Profits Fund managed by the Group), Scottish
Widows Annuities Limited (a subsidiary of Scottish
Widows that accepts the reinsurance of annuity
business from its parent), Abbey Life Assurance
Company Limited (‘Abbey Life’) and Lloyds TSB Life
Assurance Company Limited (‘Lloyds TSB Life’).
Since March 2000 both Abbey Life and Lloyds TSB
Life have continued to administer existing policies and
have undertaken only limited new business. No
change in this activity is anticipated in respect of
Abbey Life. On 31 December 2004, Lloyds TSB Life
ceased trading and transferred most of its assets and
insurance business to Scottish Widows.

Basis of determining regulatory capital of the life
assurance business

a)  Available capital resources

Available capital resources represent the excess of
assets over liabilities calculated in accordance with
detailed regulatory rules issued by the Financial
Services Authority (‘FSA’). Different rules apply
depending on the nature of the fund, as detailed below.

Statutory basis. Assets are generally valued on a basis
consistent with that used for accounting purposes
(with the exception that, in certain cases, the value
attributed to assets is limited) and which follows a
market value approach where possible. With the
express permission of the FSA, an intangible asset can
be recognised which represents the present value of
future releases of prudent margins on business
written. The liabilities are calculated using a
projection of future cash flows after making prudent
assumptions about matters such as investment
return, expenses and mortality. Discount rates used
to value the liabilities are set with reference to the risk
adjusted vyields on the underlying assets in
accordance with the FSA rules. Other assumptions
are based on recent actual experience, supplemented
by industry information where appropriate. The
assessment of liabilities does not include future
bonuses for with-profits policies that are at the
discretion of the company, but does include a value
for policyholder options likely to be exercised.
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‘Realistic’ basis. The FSA requires each life assurance
company which contains a with-profits fund in excess
of £500 million, including Scottish Widows, to carry
out a ‘realistic’ valuation of that fund. The word
‘realistic’ in this context reflects the terminology used
for reporting to the FSA and is an assessment of the
financial position of a with-profits fund calculated
under a prescribed methodology. The methodology
has the effect of limiting the assumed average future
investment return to the risk-free rate and represents a
best estimate of a theoretical market value of the
liabilities.

The valuation of with-profits assets in the
With-Profits Fund on a realistic basis differs from the
valuation on a statutory basis as, in respect of non-
profits business written in the With-Profits Fund, it
includes the present value of the anticipated future
release of the prudent margins for adverse deviation.
The realistic valuation uses the market value of assets
without the limit affecting the statutory basis noted
above.

The realistic valuation of liabilities is carried out
using a stochastic simulation model which values
liabilities on a basis consistent with tradable market
option contracts (a ‘market-consistent’ basis). The
model takes account of policyholder behaviour on a
best-estimate basis and includes an adjustment to
reflect future uncertainties where the exercise of
options by policyholders might increase liabilities.
Further details regarding the stochastic simulation
model are given below in the section entitled ‘Options
and guarantees’.

b)  Regulatory capital requirements

Each life assurance company must retain sufficient
capital to meet the regulatory capital requirements
mandated by the FSA; the basis of calculating the
regulatory capital requirement is given below. For the
companies described above, with the exception of
Scottish Widows, the regulatory capital requirement is
a combination of amounts held in respect of actuarial
reserves and sums at risk (the Long-Term Insurance
Capital Requirement) and amounts required to cover
various stress tests. The regulatory capital
requirement is deducted from the available capital
resources to give ‘statutory excess capital’.

For Scottish Widows, a further test is required in
respect of the With-Profits Fund which compares the
level of ‘realistic excess capital’ to the ‘statutory excess
capital’ of the With-Profits Fund and, in
circumstances where the ‘realistic excess capital’
position is less, the company is required to hold

additional capital to cover the shortfall. The ‘realistic
excess capital’ is calculated as the difference between
realistic assets and realistic liabilities of the With-
Profits Fund with a further deduction to cover various
stress tests. Any additional capital requirement under
this test is referred to as the With-Profits Insurance
Capital Component.

The determination of realistic liabilities of the
With-Profits Fund in respect of Scottish Widows
includes the value of internal transfers expected to
be made from the With-Profits Fund to the Non-
Participating Fund of Scottish Widows. These internal
transfers include charges on policies where the
associated costs are borne by the Non-Participating
Fund. The value of the transfers exceeds the value of
the costs which, in the case of Scottish Widows,
results in the somewhat artificial increase in the With-
Profits Insurance Capital Component of over
£500 million.

c) Constraints over available capital resources

Scottish  Widows was created following the
demutualisation of Scottish Widows Fund and Life
Assurance Society in 2000. The terms of the
demutualisation are governed by a Court-approved
Scheme of Transfer (the ‘Scheme’) which, inter alia,
created a With-Profits Fund and a Non-Participating
Fund and established protected capital support for the
with-profits policyholders in existence at the date of
demutualisation. Much of that capital support is held
in the Non-Participating Fund and, as such, the
capital held in that fund is subject to the constraints
noted below.

Requirement to maintain a Support Account. The
Scheme requires the maintenance of a ‘Support
Account’ within the Non-Participating Fund. The
quantum of the Support Account is calculated with
reference to the value of assets backing current with-
profits policies which also existed at the date of
demutualisation and must be maintained until the
value of these assets reaches a minimum level. Assets
can only be transferred from the Non-Participating
Fund if the value of the remaining assets in the fund
exceeds the value of the Support Account. Scottish
Widows has obtained from the FSA permission to
include the value of the Support Account in assessing
the realistic value of assets available to the With-
Profits Fund. At 31 December 2004, the value of
surplus admissible assets in the Non-Participating
Fund was £2,222 million and the value of the
Support Account was £1,265 million.
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Further Support Account. The Further Support
Account is an extra tier of capital support for the
with-profits policies in existence at the date of
demutualisation. The Scheme requires that assets
can only be transferred from the Non-Participating
Fund if the economic value of the remaining assets in
the fund exceeds the aggregate of the Support
Account and Further Support Account. Unlike the
Support Account test, the economic value used for
this test includes both admissible assets and the
present value of future profits of business written in
the Non-Participating Fund or by any subsidiaries of
that fund. The balance of the Further Support Account
is expected to reduce to nil by the year 2030.
At 31 December 2004, the net economic value of
the Non-Participating Fund and its subsidiaries for the
purposes of this test was £4,185 million and the
combined value of the Support Account and Further
Support Account was £2,704 million.

Other restrictions in the Non-Participating Fund. The
Scheme states that no amounts can be transferred
from the Non-Participating Fund of Scottish Widows
unless there are sufficient assets within the
Long-Term Fund to meet both policyholders’
reasonable expectations in light of liabilities in force
at a year end and the new business expected to be
written over the following year.

Financial information calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis
The estimated financial position of the With-Profits
Fund of Scottish Widows at 31 December 2004,
calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis, is given in the
following table, in the form that the information will
be reported to the FSA. As a result of the capital
support arrangements, it is considered appropriate to
also disclose the ‘realistic’ financial position of the
Long-Term Fund of Scottish Widows as a whole,
which consists of both the With-Profits Fund and the
Non-Participating Fund.

With- Long-
Profits Term
Fund Fund
£m £m
Realistic value of assets of fund 17,814 22,012
Support arrangement assets (value of
‘Support Account’) 1,265
Realistic value of assets available to the fund 19,079 22,012
Realistic value of liabilities of fund (18,108) (17,827)
Working capital for fund 971 4,185
Working capital ratio for fund 5.1% 19.0%

Scottish Widows continues to be well capitalised with
the working capital ratio for the With-Profits Fund and
the Long-Term Fund being an estimated 5.1 per cent
and 19.0 per cent respectively.

The realistic liabilities of the With-Profits Fund
disclosed above include amounts payable from the
With-Profits Fund to the Non-Participating Fund of
Scottish Widows in respect of the shareholders’ share
of future bonuses and other charges due as a result of
the Scheme. The value of the liabilities excluding
the shareholders’ share of future bonuses is
£17,988 million. The value of the liabilities
excluding the value placed on all interfund transfers
is £17,353 million, and the value of excess assets in
the With-Profits Fund after eliminating those amounts
(excluding the value of the Support Account) is
£461 million.

The following table reconciles the value of the
Long-Term Fund of Scottish Widows quoted above to
the total shareholders’ funds attributable to the life
assurance business of the Group, calculated on a
modified statutory solvency basis:

Life
assurance
business
£m
Total shareholders’ funds on a modified statutory
solvency basis* (note 28(h)) 4,596
Adjustments to restate amounts onto an FSA statutory
basis (517)
Available capital resources on an FSA statutory basis
excluding the With-Profits Fund 4,079
Fund for future appropriations** 1,354
Total available capital resources on an FSA statutory basis 5,433
Capital resources held outside the Long-Term Fund of
Scottish Widows (1,260)
Net effect of adjustments to restate amounts onto a
realistic basis 12
Excess assets in the Long-Term Fund of Scottish
Widows on a realistic basis 4,185

*A reconciliation of the total shareholders’ funds on a modified
statutory solvency basis (£4,596 million) to the amount included
in the Group’'s balance sheet on an embedded value basis
(£6,796 million) is included in note 28(h) to the financial
statements.

**The fund for future appropriations included in the table relates

to the With-Profits Fund of Scottish Widows only; the figure
disclosed in note 28(h) to the financial statements
(£1,379 million) includes £25 million in respect of the other
life funds of the Group.
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Capital sensitivities
a)  Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders’ funds outside the long-term business
fund are mainly invested in assets that are less
sensitive to market conditions.

b)  With-Profits Fund

The with-profits realistic liabilities and the available
capital for the With-Profits Fund are sensitive to both
market conditions and changes to a number of
non-economic assumptions that affect the valuation
of the liabilities of the fund. The available capital
resources (and capital requirements) are most
sensitive to the level of the stock market, with the
position worsening at lower stock market levels as a
result of the guarantees to policyholders increasing in
value. An increase in the level of equity volatility
implied by the market cost of equity put options also
increases the market consistent value of the options
given to policyholders and worsens the capital
position.

The most critical non-economic assumptions
are the level of take-up of options inherent in the
contracts (higher take up rates are more onerous),
mortality rates (lower mortality rates are more
onerous) and lapses prior to dates at which a
guarantee would apply (lower lapse rates are
generally more onerous where guarantees are in the
money). The sensitivity of the capital position and
capital requirements of the With-Profits Fund is partly
mitigated by the actions that can be taken by
management.

c)  Other long-term funds

Outside the With-Profits Fund, assets backing
actuarial reserves in respect of policyholder liabilities
are invested so that the values of the assets and
liabilities are broadly matched. The most critical
non-economic assumptions are mortality rates in
respect of annuity business written (lower mortality
rates are more onerous). The Group has reduced its
exposure to deteriorating mortality rates in respect of
life assurance contracts through its reinsurance
arrangements. In addition, poor cost control would
gradually depreciate the available capital and lead to
an increase in the valuation of the liabilities (through
an increased allowance for future costs).

Formal intra-group capital arrangements

Scottish Widows has a formal arrangement with one
of its subsidiary undertakings, Scottish Widows Unit
Funds Limited, whereby the subsidiary company can

draw down capital from Scottish Widows to finance
new business which is reinsured from the parent to its
subsidiary. Scottish Widows has also provided
subordinated loans to its fellow group undertakings,
Scottish  Widows Annuities Limited and Scottish
Widows Bank plc.

Options and guarantees

The Group has sold insurance products that contain
options and guarantees, both within the With-Profits
Fund and in other funds.

a)  Options and guarantees within the With-Profits
Fund

The most significant options and guarantees provided
from within the With-Profits Fund are in respect of
guaranteed minimum cash benefits on death,
maturity, retirement or certain policy anniversaries,
and guaranteed annuity options on retirement for
certain pension policies. As noted above, under the
realistic capital regime of the FSA, the liabilities of the
With-Profits  Fund are valued using a market-
consistent stochastic simulation model. This model
is used in order to place a value on the options and
guarantees which captures both their intrinsic value
and their time value.

The most significant economic assumptions
included in the model are:

— Risk-free yield curve. This is derived from the yield
on UK gilts, with an additional 0.1 per cent yield
assumed to be risk-free;

— Investment volatility. This is derived from derivatives
where possible, or historical observed volatility where
it is not possible to observe meaningful prices. As at
31 December 2004, the assumptions were set at
18 per cent for equities, 15 per cent for properties and
13 per cent for interest rates.

The model includes a matrix of the correlations
between each of the underlying modelled asset types.
The correlations used are consistent with long-term
historical returns. The most significant non-economic
assumptions included in the model are management
actions (in respect of investment policy and bonus
rates), guaranteed annuity option take up rates and
assumptions regarding persistency (both of which are
based on recent actual experience), and assumptions
regarding mortality (which are based on recent actual
experience and industry tables).
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b)  Options and guarantees outside the With-Profits
Fund of Scottish Widows

Abbey Life currently has a number of policies in-force
which have a guaranteed annuity option. In total it
holds statutory reserves of £288 million to cover this
liability at 31 December 2004. These reserves have
been determined using prudent future interest rate,
mortality rate and rate of annuity option take-up
assumptions and exceed the value that would be
placed on them using a market-consistent stochastic
model. It is estimated that a 0.5 per cent reduction in
future interest rates would increase the liability by
some £45 million.

Under some of Abbey Life’s older contracts, the
maturity value or the surrender value at the end of the
selected period is guaranteed to be not less than total
premiums paid or sums assured. The total provision
for these options was £11 million at 31 December
2004 and was established wusing stochastic
techniques after making prudent assumptions.

In both Abbey Life and Scottish Widows, certain
personal  pension  policyholders, for ~ whom
reinstatement to their occupational pension scheme
was not an option, have been given a guarantee that
their pension and other benefits will correspond in
value to the benefits of the relevant occupational
pension scheme. The key assumptions affecting the
ultimate value of the guarantee are future salary
growth, gilt yields at retirement, annuitant mortality at
retirement, marital status at retirement and future
investment returns. There is currently a provision,
calculated on a deterministic basis, of £89 million in
respect of those guarantees. If future salary growth
were 0.5 per cent per annum greater than assumed,
the liability would increase by some £6 million. If
yields were 0.5 per cent lower than assumed, the
liability would increase by some £15 million.

Employees

The Bank is committed to employment policies which
follow best practice, based on equal opportunities for
all employees irrespective of sex, race, national origin,
religion, colour, disability, sexual orientation, age or
marital status.

In the UK, the Bank supports Opportunity Now
and is represented on the board of Race for
Opportunity, campaigns to improve opportunities for
women and ethnic minorities in the work place. The
Bank is a gold card member of the Employers’ Forum
on Disability, in support of employment of people with
disabilities. This recognises the need for ensuring fair
employment practices in recruitment and selection,

and the retention, training and career development of
disabled staff.

Employees are kept closely involved in major
changes affecting them through such measures as
team meetings, briefings, internal communications
and opinion surveys. There are well established
procedures, including regular meetings  with
recognised unions, to ensure that the views of
employees are taken into accountin reaching decisions.

Schemes offering share options or the
acquisition of shares are available for most staff, to
encourage their financial involvement in the Lloyds
TSB Group.

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Bank follows ‘The Better Payment Practice Code’
published by the Department of Trade and Industry
regarding the making of payments to suppliers. A
copy of the code and information about it may be
obtained from The DTl Publications Orderline
0870 1502 500, quoting ref URN 04/606.

The Bank's policy is to agree terms of payment
with suppliers and these normally provide for
settlement within 30 days after the date of the
invoice, except where other arrangements have been
negotiated. It is the policy of the Bank to abide by the
agreed terms of payment, provided the supplier
performs according to the terms of the contract.

The number of days required to be shown in
this report, to comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1985, is 28. This bears the same
proportion to the number of days in the year as the
aggregate of the amounts owed to trade creditors at
31 December 2004 bears to the aggregate of the
amounts invoiced by suppliers during the year.

On behalf of the board

A J Michie
Secretary
3 March 2005
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Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Lloyds TSB Bank plc

We have audited the financial statements which
comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, the
balance sheets, the statement of total recognised
gains and losses and related notes which have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out on
pages 13 to 16.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual

report including, as described below, the financial

statements. The United Kingdom Companies Act

1985 requires the directors to prepare financial

statements for each financial year which give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and the

Group as at the end of the year and of the profit or loss

for that year. In preparing those financial statements,

the directors are required to:

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

— make judgements and estimates
reasonable and prudent;

— state whether applicable accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

— prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Bank and the Group will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank
and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the United Kingdom
Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial
statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and United Kingdom Auditing
Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

This report, including the opinion, has been
prepared for and only for the Bank’s members as a
body in accordance with Section 235 of the United
Kingdom Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or in to
whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

that are

We report to you our opinion as to whether the
financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
directors’ report is not consistent with the financial
statements, if the Bank has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit,
or if information specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the directors’ report contained in the
annual report and consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Bank and
the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and the
Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit of
the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the United
Kingdom Companies Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Southampton

3 March 2005
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations Total
2004 2003 2003* 2003
Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Interest receivable:
Interest receivable and similar income
arising from debt securities 423 389 63 452
Other interest receivable and similar income 9,917 8,438 1,213 9,651
Interest payable 5,436 4,103 765 4,868
Net interest income 4,904 4,724 511 5,235
Other finance income 45 39 34 - 34
Other income
Fees and commissions receivable 3,127 2,990 112 3,102
Fees and commissions payable (744) (729) (34) (763)
Dealing profits (before expenses) 3 271 525 35 560
Income from long-term assurance business 28 715 436 17 453
General insurance premium income 554 b35 - 535
Other operating income 688 687 12 699
4,611 4,444 142 4,586
Total income 9,554 9,202 653 9,855
Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 4 4,241 4,155 247 4,402
Depreciation and amortisation 22, 23 633 670 25 695
Total operating expenses 4,874 4,825 272 5,097
Trading surplus 4,680 4,377 381 4,758
General insurance claims 224 236 - 236
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 14
Specific 953 883 63 946
General (87) 4 - 4
866 887 63 950
Amounts written off fixed asset investments 5 52 44 - 44
Operating profit 3,538 3,210 318 3,628
Share of results of joint ventures 19 - (22) - (22)
(Loss) profit on sale of businesses 6 (15) - 865 865
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 7 3,523 3,188 1,183 4371
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 1,045 1,012
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 2,478 3,359
Minority interests: equity 26 22
: hon-equity 38 42 47
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 9 2,410 3,290
Dividends 10 1,913 1,911
Profit for the year 40 497 1,379

*See note 6




Assets

Cash and balances at central banks
Items in course of collection from banks
Treasury bills and other eligible bills
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Equity shares

Interests in joint ventures:

— share of gross assets

— share of gross liabilities

Shares in group undertakings
Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Other assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Long-term assurance business attributable

to the shareholder

Long-term assurance assets attributable
to policyholders

Total assets

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2004

The directors approved the accounts on 3 March 2005.

Maarten A van den Bergh
Chairman

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
1,078 1,195 998 1,106
1,462 1,447 1,416 1,396
11 92 539 88 525
12 23,565 15,547 79,880 62,981
13 155,981 137,017 77,709 72,428
16 25,194 28,669 16,531 19,558
17 215 458 17 264
84 85
(31) (31)
19 53 b4 35 36
20 - - 21,434 19,805
22 2,425 2,507 107 118
23 4,181 3,916 1,289 1,297
26 3,201 3,925 2,948 3,455
27 2,584 1,928 1,871 1,584
28 6,796 6,496 - -
226,827 203,698 204,323 184,553
28 54,894 50,200 - -
281,721 253,898 204,323 184,553
J Eric Daniels Helen A Weir

Chief Executive
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2004

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 30 39,738 23,955 47,568 30,211
Customer accounts 31 122,354 116,944 100,708 100,141
Items in course of transmission to banks 631 626 527 b52
Debt securities in issue 32 27,217 25,922 23,407 22,160
Other liabilities 33 6,570 6,789 6,250 6,051
Accruals and deferred income 34 3,912 3,242 2,265 2,135
Post-retirement benefit liability 45 2,231 2,139 - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges:
Deferred tax 35 1,476 1,383 (131) (188)
Other provisions for liabilities
and charges 36 417 402 160 142
Subordinated liabilities:
Undated loan capital 37 5,855 5,962 6,305 6,411
Dated loan capital 37 4,774 4,874 4,174 4,269
10,629 10,836 10,479 10,680
Minority interests:
Equity 46 44
Non-equity 38 550 683
596 727
Called-up share capital 39 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542
Share premium account 40 2,960 2,960 2,960 2,960
Revaluation reserve 40 - - 3,827 3,374
Profit and loss account 40 6,554 6,231 4,761 4,793
Shareholders’ funds (equity and non-equity) 41 11,056 10,733 13,090 12,669
226,827 203,698 204,323 184,553
Long-term assurance liabilities to
policyholders 28 54,894 50,200 - -
Total liabilities 281,721 253,898 204,323 184,553
Memorandum items 46
Contingent liabilities:
Acceptances and endorsements 71 299 37 269
Guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral security 6,786 6,122 6,899 6,150
Other contingent liabilities 1,669 2,604 1,686 2,648
8,526 9,025 8,622 9,067
Commitments 85,290 79,335 81,792 76,635
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003

Note £ million £ million

Profit attributable to shareholders 2,410 3,290

Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments (11) 118

Actuarial losses recognised in post-retirement benefit schemes (237) (6)

Deferred tax thereon 71 2

45 (166) (4)

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 2,233 3,404
Prior year adjustment in respect of change in accounting policy in 2003

- (26)

Total gains and losses recognised during the year 2,233 3,378

Historical cost profits and losses

for the year ended 31 December 2004

There was no material difference between the results as reported and the results that would have been reported
on an unmodified historical cost basis. Accordingly, no note of historical cost profits and losses has been

included.

Reconciliation of movements in consolidated shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003

Note £ million £ million

Profit attributable to shareholders 2,410 3,290
Dividends (1,913) (1,911)
Profit for the year 497 1,379
Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments (11) 118
Actuarial losses recognised in post-retirement benefit schemes 45 (166) (4)
Goodwill written back on sale of businesses 6 3 181
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 323 1,674
Shareholders’ funds at beginning of year 10,733 9,059
Shareholders’ funds at end of year 11,056 10,733
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies
Accounting policies are unchanged from 2003.

a Accounting convention

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of debt securities and equity shares held for dealing purposes
(see g), shares in group undertakings (see h) and assets held in the long-term
assurance business (see 0); in compliance with Section 255A, Schedule 9 and
other requirements of the Companies Act 1985 except as described below (see
¢); in accordance with applicable accounting standards, pronouncements of the
Urgent Issues Task Force and with the Statements of Recommended Practice
issued by the British Bankers’ Association and the Finance & Leasing
Association. The Group’s methodology for calculating embedded value
follows the guidance published by the Association of British Insurers for the
preparation of figures using the achieved profits method of accounting except
that tangible assets attributable to the shareholder are valued at market value.
The guidance would require those assets backing capital requirements to be
discounted to reflect the cost of encumbered capital, but such a treatment
would be inconsistent with the treatment of capital supporting the Group’s
banking operations.

As permitted by Financial Reporting Standard 1 (revised), no cash flow
statement is presented in these accounts, as the Bank is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Lloyds TSB Group plc which presents such a statement in its own
accounts. In addition, advantage has been taken of the exemption available
under Financial Reporting Standard 8 not to disclose details of transactions with
Lloyds TSB Group plc or other group or associated undertakings, as the
consolidated accounts of Lloyds TSB Group plc in which the Bank is included
are publicly available.

The Group continues to take advantage of the dispensation in the Urgent Issues
Task Force’s Abstract 17 ‘Employee Share Schemes’ not to apply that Abstract
to the Lloyds TSB Group’s Inland Revenue approved SAYE schemes.

b Basis of consolidation

Assets, liabilities and results of group undertakings and joint ventures are
included in the consolidated accounts on the basis of accounts made up to
31 December. Entities that do not meet the legal definition of a subsidiary but
which give rise to benefits that are in substance no different to those that would
arise from subsidiaries are also included in the consolidated accounts. In order
to reflect the different nature of the shareholder’s and policyholders’ interests in
the long-term assurance business, the value of long-term assurance business
attributable to the shareholder and the assets and liabilities attributable to
policyholders are classified under separate headings in the consolidated
balance sheet. Details of transactions entered into by the Group which are not
eliminated on consolidation are given in note 44.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

¢ Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions of or by group undertakings is capitalised. For
acquisitions prior to 1 January 1998, goodwill was taken direct to reserves in
the year of acquisition. As permitted by the transitional arrangements of
Financial Reporting Standard 10, this goodwill was not reinstated when the
Group adopted the standard in 1998.

The useful economic life of the goodwill arising on each acquisition is
determined at the time of the acquisition. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to assign an indefinite life to the goodwill which arose on the
acquisition of Scottish Widows during 2000 in view of the strength of the
Scottish Widows brand, developed through over 185 years of trading, and the
position of the business as one of the leading providers of life, pensions, unit
trust and fund management products. Both of these attributes are deemed to
have indefinite durability, which has been determined based on the following
factors: the nature of the business; the typical lifespans of the products; the
extent to which the acquisition overcomes market entry barriers; and the
expected future impact of competition on the business.

As a result the Scottish Widows goodwill is not being amortised through the
profit and loss account; however, it is subjected to annual impairment reviews
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 11. Impairment of the
goodwill is evaluated by comparing the present value of the expected future
cash flows, excluding financing and tax, (the ‘value-in-use’) to the carrying
value of the underlying net assets and goodwill. If the net assets and goodwill
were to exceed the value-in-use, an impairment would be deemed to have
occurred and the resulting write-down in the goodwill would be charged to the
profit and loss account immediately.

Paragraph 28 of Schedule 9 to the Companies Act 1985 requires that all
goodwill carried on the balance sheet should be amortised. In the case of the
goodwill arising on the acquisition of Scottish Widows, the directors consider
that it is appropriate to depart from this requirement in order to comply with the
over-riding requirement for the accounts to show a true and fair view. If this
goodwill was amortised over a period of 20 years, profit before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2004 would be £92 million lower (2003: £93 million
lower), with a corresponding reduction in reserves of £450 million
(2003: £358 million); intangible assets on the balance sheet would also be
£450 million lower (2003: £358 million lower).

Goodwill arising on all other acquisitions after 1 January 1998 is amortised on
a straight line basis over its estimated useful economic life, which does not
exceed 20 years.

At the date of the disposal of group or associated undertakings, any
unamortised goodwill, or goodwill taken directly to reserves prior to
1 January 1998, is included in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
undertaking in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

d Income recognition

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues, with
the exception of interest on non-performing lending which is taken to income
either when it is received or when there ceases to be any significant doubt about
its ultimate receipt (see e).

Fees and commissions receivable from customers to reimburse the Group for
costs incurred are taken to income when due. Fees and commissions relating to
the ongoing provision of a service or risk borne for a customer are taken to
income in proportion to the service provided or risk borne in each accounting
period. Fees and commissions charged in lieu of interest are taken to income on
a level yield basis over the period of the loan. Other fees and commissions
receivable are accounted for as they fall due.



Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies (continued)
e Provisions for bad and doubtful debts and non-performing lending

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

It is the Group’s policy to make provisions for bad and doubtful debts, by way of
a charge to the profit and loss account, to reflect the losses inherent in the loan
portfolio at the balance sheet date. There are two types of provision, specific
and general, and these are discussed further below.

Specific provisions
Specific provisions relate to identified risk advances and are raised when the
Group considers that recovery of the whole of the outstanding balance is in
serious doubt. The amount of the provision is equivalent to the amount
necessary to reduce the carrying value of the advance to its expected ultimate
net realisable value.

For the Group’s portfolios of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as the
residential mortgage, personal lending and credit card portfolios, specific
provisions are calculated using a formulae driven approach. These formulae
take into account factors such as the length of time that payments from the
customer are overdue, the value of any collateral held and the level of past and
expected losses, in order to derive an appropriate provision.

For the Group’s other lending portfolios, specific provisions are calculated on a
case-by-case basis. In establishing an appropriate provision, factors such as the
financial condition of the customer, the nature and value of any collateral held
and the costs associated with obtaining repayment and realisation of the
collateral are taken into consideration.

General provisions

General provisions are raised to cover latent bad and doubtful debts which are
present in any portfolio of advances but have not been specifically identified.
The Group has general provisions, held against each of its principal lending
portfolios, which are calculated after having regard to a number of factors; in
particular, the level of watchlist or potential problem debt, the observed
propensity for such debt to deteriorate and become impaired and prior period
loss rates. The level of general provision held is reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure that it remains appropriate in the context of the perceived risk inherent in
the related portfolio and the prevailing economic climate.

Non-performing lending

An advance becomes non-performing when interest ceases to be credited to the
profit and loss account. There are two types of non-performing lending which
are discussed further below.

Accruing loans on which interest is being placed in suspense

Where the customer continues to operate the account, but there is doubt about the
payment of interest, interest continues to be charged to the customer’s account,
but it is not applied to income. Interest is placed on a suspense account and
only taken to income if there ceases to be doubt about its being paid.

Loans accounted for on a non-accrual basis

In those cases where the operation of the customer’s account has ceased and it
has been transferred to a specialist recovery department, the advance is written
down to its expected net realisable value and interest is no longer charged to the
customer’s account as the likelihood of its recovery is considered remote.
Interest is only taken to income if it is received.

f Mortgage incentives

Payments made under cash gift and discount mortgage schemes, which are
recoverable from the customer in the event of early redemption, are amortised
as an adjustment to net interest income over the early redemption charge
period. Payments cease to be deferred and are charged to the profit and loss
account in the event that the related loan is redeemed or becomes impaired.

g Debt securities and equity shares

Debt securities, apart from those held for dealing purposes and in the long-term
assurance business (see 0), are stated at cost as adjusted for the amortisation of
any premiums and discounts arising on acquisition, which are amortised from
purchase to maturity in equal annual instalments, less amounts written off for
any permanent diminution in their value. Equity shares, apart from those held
for dealing purposes and in the long-term assurance business (see 0), are stated
at cost less amounts written off for any permanent diminution in their value.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Debt securities and equity shares held for dealing purposes are included at
market value. In circumstances where securities are transferred between the
dealing and investment portfolios, the transfer is effected at an amount based
on the market value at the date of transfer. Any resulting profit or loss is reflected
in the profit and loss account.

h Shares in group undertakings

Shares in group undertakings are stated in the balance sheet of the Bank at its
share of net assets, with the exception of the life assurance group undertakings
which are stated on the basis described in o. Attributable goodwill is included,
where this has not been written off directly to reserves.

i Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less depreciation.

Land is not depreciated. Leasehold premises with unexpired lease terms of
50 years or less are depreciated by equal annual instalments over the remaining
period of the lease. Freehold and long leasehold buildings are depreciated over
50 years. The costs of adapting premises for the use of the Group are separately
identified and depreciated over 10 years, or over the term of the lease if less;
such costs are included within premises in the balance sheet total of tangible
fixed assets. Equipment is depreciated by equal annual instalments over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which for fixtures and furnishings are
10-20 years and for computer hardware, operating software and application
software and the related development costs relating to separable new systems,
motor vehicles and other equipment are 3-8 years.

Premises and equipment held for letting to customers under operating leases
are depreciated over the life of the lease to give a constant rate of return on the
net cash investment, taking into account tax and anticipated residual values.
Anticipated residual values are reviewed regularly and any impairments
identified are charged to the profit and loss account.

j Vacant leasehold property

When a leasehold property ceases to be used in the business or a commitment
is entered into which would cause this to occur, provision is made to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the interest in the property is expected to be
insufficient to cover future obligations relating to the lease.

k Leasing and instalment credit transactions

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases if the lease
agreements transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee; all other leases are classified as operating leases.

Income from finance leases is credited to the profit and loss account in
proportion to the net cash invested so as to give a constant rate of return over
each period after taking account of tax. Income from instalment credit
transactions is credited to the profit and loss account using the sum of the
digits method. Rental income from operating leases is credited to the profit and
loss account on an accruals basis.

In those cases where the Group is the lessee, operating lease costs are charged
to the profit and loss account in equal annual instalments over the life of the
lease.

| Deferred tax

Full provision is made for deferred tax liabilities arising from timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their
recognition in a tax computation. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted, or where they can be offset against deferred tax
liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse,
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

m Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution
post-retirement benefit schemes.



Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Full actuarial valuations of the Group’s principal defined benefit schemes are
carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years; these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independent
actuaries. For the purposes of these annual updates, scheme assets are
included at market value and scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit method; these liabilities are discounted at the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency
and term. The post-retirement benefit surplus or deficit is included on the
Group’s balance sheet, net of the related amount of deferred tax. Surpluses are
only included to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced
contributions in the future or through refunds from the schemes. The current
service cost and any past service costs are included in the profit and loss
account within operating expenses and the expected return on the schemes’
assets, after deducting the impact of the unwinding of the discount on scheme
liabilities, is included within other finance income. Actuarial gains and losses,
including differences between the expected and actual return on scheme assets,
are recognised, net of the related deferred tax, in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses.

The costs of the Group’s defined contribution pension schemes are charged to
the profit and loss account in the period in which they fall due.

The majority of the Bank’s employees are members of the Group’s two main
pension schemes, Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2, along
with employees of a number of the Bank’s subsidiaries. Because it is not
possible to separately identify the amount of any surpluses or deficits in these
schemes relating to each employing company, in the accounts of individual
companies, including the Bank, these schemes are accounted for as defined
contribution schemes in accordance with the requirements of Financial
Reporting Standard 17. The Bank charges contributions to these schemes to
its profit and loss account as and when they fall due.

n Foreign currency translation

Assets, liabilities and results in foreign currencies are expressed in sterling at the
rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the respective balance sheets. Exchange
adjustments on the translation of opening net assets held overseas are taken
direct to reserves. All foreign exchange gains and losses, which arise from
normal trading activities, are included in the profit and loss account.

o Long-term assurance business

The Group accounts for its interest in long-term assurance business using the
embedded value basis of accounting. The value of the shareholder’s interest in
the long-term assurance business (‘the embedded value’) included in the
Group’s balance sheet is an actuarially determined estimate of the economic
value of the Group’s life assurance subsidiaries, excluding any value which may
be attributed to future new business. The embedded value is comprised of the
net tangible assets of the life assurance subsidiaries, including any surplus
retained within the long-term business funds, which could be transferred to the
shareholder, and the present value of the in-force business. The present value
of the in-force business is calculated by projecting the future surpluses and
other net cash flows attributable to the shareholder arising from business
written by the balance sheet date, using appropriate economic and actuarial
assumptions, and discounting the result at a rate which reflects the
shareholder’s overall risk premium attributable to this business.

Surpluses arise following annual actuarial valuations of the long-term business
funds, which are carried out in accordance with the statutory requirements
designed to ensure and demonstrate the solvency of the funds. Future surpluses
will depend upon experience in a number of areas such as investment returns,
lapse rates, mortality and administrative expenses. Surpluses can be projected
by making realistic assumptions about future experience, having regard to both
actual experience and forecast long-term economic trends. Other net cash flows
principally comprise annual management charges and other fees levied upon
the policyholders by the life assurance subsidiaries.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Changes in the embedded value, which are determined on a post-tax basis, are
included in the profit and loss account. For the purpose of presentation, the
change in this value is grossed up at the underlying rate of corporation tax.

The assets held within the long-term business funds of the Group'’s life
assurance operations are legally owned by the Group, however the shareholder
will only benefit from ownership of these assets to the extent that surpluses are
declared or from other cash flows attributable to the shareholder. Reflecting the
different nature of these assets, they are classified separately on the Group’s
balance sheet as ‘Long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders’,
with a corresponding liability to the policyholders also shown. Investments held
within the long-term business funds are included on the following basis: equity
shares, debt securities and unit trusts held for unit-linked funds are valued in
accordance with policy conditions at market prices; other equity shares and
debt securities are valued at middle market price and other unit trusts at bid
price; investment properties are included at valuation by independent valuers at
existing use value at the balance sheet date, and mortgages and loans are at
cost less amounts written off.

p General insurance business

The Group both underwrites and acts as intermediary in the sale of general
insurance products. Underwriting premiums are included, net of refunds, in the
period in which insurance cover is provided to the customer; premiums
received relating to future periods are deferred and only credited to the profit
and loss account when earned. Where the Group acts as intermediary,
commission income is included in the profit and loss account at the time that
the underwriter accepts the risk of providing insurance cover to the customer.
Where appropriate, provision is made for the effect of future policy terminations
based upon past experience.

The underwriting business makes provision for the estimated cost of claims
notified but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet
date. The provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled is based upon a
best estimate of the cost of settling the outstanding claims after taking into
account all known facts. In those cases where there is insufficient information to
determine the required provision, statistical techniques are used which take into
account the cost of claims that have recently been settled and make
assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases. Similar
statistical techniques are used to determine the provision for claims incurred but
not reported at the balance sheet date. Claims equalisation provisions are
calculated in accordance with the relevant legislative requirements.

q Sale and repurchase transactions

Securities which have been sold with an agreement to repurchase continue to
be shown on the balance sheet and the sale proceeds recorded within deposits
by banks or customer accounts as appropriate. Securities acquired in reverse
sale and repurchase transactions are not recognised on the balance sheet and
the purchase price is recorded within loans and advances. The difference
between the sale price and repurchase price is accrued evenly over the life of
the transaction and charged or credited to the profit and loss account as interest
payable or receivable.

r Derivatives

Derivatives are used in the Group’s trading activities to meet the financial needs
of customers, for proprietary purposes and to manage risk in the Group’s trading
portfolios. Such instruments include exchange rate forwards and futures,
currency swaps and options together with interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, interest rate options and futures. These derivatives are carried at
fair value and all changes in fair value are reported within dealing profits in the
profit and loss account. Fair values are normally determined by reference to
quoted market prices; internal models are used to determine fair value in
instances where no market price is available. The unrealised gains and losses
on trading derivatives are included within other assets and other liabilities
respectively. These items are reported gross except in instances where the
Group has entered into legally binding netting agreements, where the Group has
a right to insist on net settlement that would survive the insolvency of the
counterparty; in these cases the positive and negative fair values of trading
derivatives with the relevant counterparties are offset within the balance sheet
totals.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Derivatives used in the Group’s non-trading activities are taken out to reduce
exposures to fluctuations in interest and exchange rates and include exchange
rate forwards and futures, currency swaps together with interest rate swaps,
forward rate agreements and options. These derivatives are accounted for in the
same way as the underlying items which they are hedging. Interest receipts and
payments on hedging interest derivatives are included in the profit and loss
account so as to match the interest payable or receivable on the hedged item.

A derivative will only be classified as a hedge in circumstances where there was
evidence of the intention to hedge at the outset of the transaction and the
derivative substantially matches or eliminates the risk associated with the
exposure being hedged.

Where a hedge transaction is superseded, ceases to be effective or is terminated
early the derivative is measured at fair value. Any profit or loss arising is then
amortised to the profit and loss account over the remaining life of the item
which it was originally hedging. When the underlying asset, liability or position
that was being hedged is terminated, the hedging derivative is measured at fair
value and any profit or loss arising is recognised immediately.

2 Segmental analysis

Profit on ordinary

activities before tax

2004 2003*
£m £m
Class of business:
UK Retail Banking 1,655 1,470
Insurance and Investments
Operating profit 774 566
Changes in economic assumptions (2) (22)
Investment variance 147 125
919 669
Wholesale and International Banking 1,259 1,040
Central group items (310) 9
Continuing operations 3,523 3,188
Discontinued operations™ - 1,183
3,523 4,371
Geographical area:**
Inter-
Domestic national Total
2004 2004 2004
£m £m £m
Interest receivable 9,937 403 10,340
Other finance income 39 - 39
Fees and commissions receivable 2,983 144 3,127
Dealing profits (before expenses) 249 22 271
Income from long-term assurance business 715 - 715
General insurance premium income 554 - 554
Other operating income 682 6 688
Total gross income 15,159 575 15,734
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3,325 198 3,523
Discon-
Inter- Continuing tinued
Domestic national operations operations Total
2003 2003 2003 2003" 2003
£m £m £m £m £m
Interest receivable 8,444 383 8,827 1,276 10,103
Other finance income 34 - 34 - 34
Fees and commissions
receivable 2,834 156 2,990 112 3,102
Dealing profits (before
expenses) 276 249 525 35 560
Income from long-term
assurance business 436 - 436 17 453
General insurance
premium income 535 - 535 - 535
Other operating income 682 5 687 12 699
Total gross income 13,241 793 14,034 1,452 15,486
Profit on ordinary
activities before tax 2,833 355 3,188 1,183 4,371
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Notes to the accounts

2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Net assetst Assetst
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Class of business:
UK Retail Banking 2,991 2,554 101,615 90,531
Insurance and Investments 7,350 7,016 10,240 9,859
Wholesale and International
Banking 4,469 4,390 112,968 101,286
Central group items (3,708) (3,183) 2,004 2,022
11,102 10,777 226,827 203,698
Geographical area:**
Domestic 10,448 10,178 213,945 190,926
International 654 599 12,882 12,772
11,102 10,777 226,827 203,698
*From the beginning of 2004 the Group changed its UK branch and other

distribution networks from cost centres to profit centres and, consequently,
amended the internal commission arrangements between these networks and
the insurance product manufacturing businesses within the Group. The effect of
this change has been to redistribute income from the insurance segments to UK
Retail Banking and, to a lesser extent, to Wholesale. In addition, certain costs
previously included in Central group items were reallocated to the operating
segments. The 2003 segmental analysis has been restated to reflect these
changes on a consistent basis.

**The geographical distribution of gross income sources, profit on ordinary
activities before tax and assets by domestic and international operations is based
on the location of the office recording the transaction, except for lending by the
international business booked in London.

*See note 6 for details of discontinued operations in 2003, all of which related to
the Wholesale and International Banking segment.

tNet assets represent equity shareholders’ funds plus equity minority interests.
Disclosure of information on net assets is an accounting standard requirement
(SSAP25); it is not appropriate to relate it directly to the segmental profits above
because the business is not managed by the allocation of net assets to business
units.

tAssets exclude long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders.

As the business of the Group is mainly that of banking and insurance, no
segmental analysis of turnover is given.

3 Dealing profits (before expenses) 2004 2003
£m £m

Foreign exchange trading income 178 228
Securities and other gains 93 332
271 560

Dealing profits include the profits and losses arising both on the purchase and
sale of trading instruments and from the year-end revaluation to market value,
together with the interest income earned from these instruments and the related
funding cost.
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4 Administrative expenses 2004 2003
£m £m

Salaries 2,062 2,076
Social security costs 140 142
Other pension costs (note 45) 338 353
Staff costs 2,540 2,571
Other administrative expenses 1,701 1,831
4,241 4,402

The average number of persons on a headcount basis employed by the Group
during the year was as follows:

2004 2003

UK 74,924 73,814
Overseas 3,372 10,288
78,296 84,102

The above staff numbers exclude 4,657 (2003: 5,202) staff employed in the
long-term assurance business. Costs of £190 million (2003: £194 million) in
relation to those staff are reflected in the valuation of the long-term assurance
business.

Details of directors’ emoluments, pensions and interests are given in note 43.

The auditors’ remuneration was £5 million (2003: £5 million), of which
£1.6 million (2003: £1.6 million) related to Lloyds TSB Bank plc. Fees paid
to the auditors in respect of non-audit services were £9 million
(2003: £7 million). Non-audit fees comprise regulatory and other advisory
work.

5 Amounts written off fixed asset investments 2004 2003
£m £m
Debt securities 43 42
Equity shares 9 2
52 44
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6 (Loss)/profit before tax on sale of businesses 2004 2003
£m £m
Profit on sale of businesses in Argentina (tax : £6 million) 6 -

Loss on sale of businesses in Colombia (after charging
£3 million of goodwill previously written off to reserves)

(tax: nil) (20) -
Loss on sale of businesses in Panama, Guatemala and

Honduras (tax : £1 million) (1) -
Loss on sale of French fund management and

private banking businesses (tax: nil) - (15)

Profit on sale of New Zealand operations (after

charging £20 million of goodwill previously written off to

reserves) (tax: nil) - 921
Loss on sale of Brazilian businesses (after charging

£161 million of goodwill previously written off to

reserves) (tax: nil) - (41)

(15) 865

During 2004 the Group completed the sale, announced on 19 July 2004 and
completed on 19 November 2004, of the business of the Bank’s branch in
Argentina; the sale, announced on 19 July 2004 and completed on
30 November 2004, of the Group’s principal businesses in Colombia
comprising its interests in Lloyds TSB Bank S.A. and in Lloyds Trust S.A.
and certain offshore assets; and the sales, announced on 1 December 2003, of
substantially all of the businesses of the Bank’s branches in Panama,
Guatemala and Honduras which were completed on 30 April 2004,
4 June 2004 and 1 October 2004 respectively.

During 2003 the Group completed the sales of its French fund management
and private banking businesses, including its subsidiaries Lloyds Bank SA,
Chaillot Assurances SA and Capucines Investissements SA; its Brazilian
subsidiaries Banco Lloyds TSB S.A. and Losango Promotora de Vendas Ltda,
together with substantially all of the business of the Bank’s Brazilian branch and
certain offshore Brazilian assets; and its subsidiary, NBNZ Holdings Limited,
comprising the Group’s New Zealand banking and insurance operations.

The trading results of the businesses sold in 2004 were not material to the
Group. Discontinued operations in 2003 comprised the businesses in New
Zealand, Brazil and France sold in that year.
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7 Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Profit on ordinary activities before tax is stated after taking account of:

2004
£m
Income from:
Aggregate amounts receivable, including capital
repayments, in respect of assets leased to customers
and banks under:
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts 3,742
Operating leases 422
Profits less losses on disposal of investment securities 126
Charges:
Rental of premises 212
Hire of equipment 17
Interest on subordinated liabilities (loan capital) 602

2003
£m

3,495
446
47

220
18
599
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

a Analysis of charge for the year 2004 2003
£m £m

UK corporation tax:
Current tax on profits for the year 868 1,080
Adjustments in respect of prior years (20) (88)
848 992
Double taxation relief (58) (223)
790 769

Foreign tax:

Current tax on profits for the year 119 144
Adjustments in respect of prior years (5) (15)
114 129
Current tax charge 904 898
Deferred tax 142 121
Associated undertakings and joint ventures (1) (7)
1,045 1,012

The charge for tax on the profit for the year is based on a UK corporation tax rate
of 30 per cent (2003: 30 per cent).

In addition to the tax charge in the profit and loss account detailed above,
£71 million (2003: £2 million) of deferred tax has been credited to the
statement of total recognised gains and losses in respect of actuarial losses
recognised in post-retirement benefit schemes (note 45).

b Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

A reconciliation of the charge that would result from applying the standard UK
corporation tax rate to profit before tax to the current tax charge and total tax
charge for the year is given below:

2004 2003

£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3,523 4,371
Tax charge thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 30% 1,057 1,311
Factors affecting charge:
Goodwill amortisation 9 9
Overseas tax rate differences (14) (9)
Specifically allowable, unallowable and non-taxable
items (6) (10)
Net tax effect of disposals (12) (276)
Tax deductible coupons on non-equity minority interests (12) (12)
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (86) (105)
Other timing differences (56) (16)
Life company rate differences (16) 16
Other items 40 (10)
Current tax charge 904 898
Deferred tax
— capital allowances in excess of depreciation 86 105
— other timing differences 56 16
Associated undertakings and joint ventures (1) (7)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,045 1,012
Effective rate 29.7% 23.2%

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

c Factors that may affect the future tax charge

The current tax charge includes a charge of £199 million (2003: charge of
£157 million) in respect of notional tax on the shareholder’s interest in the
movement in value of the long-term assurance business (note 28b). Since this
derives from the use of a combination of tax rates it can give rise to a higher or
lower charge compared to an expected 30 per cent rate.

Future transfers from Scottish Widows plc's long-term business fund to its
shareholder’s fund will be subject to a shareholder tax charge. Under FRS 19,
no provision is required to be made since the timing of such transfers is under
Scottish Widows plc’s control. The potential deferred tax liability (undiscounted)
not recognised on the balance sheet is approximately £230 million
(2003: £110 million).

9 Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of £1,871 million
(2003: £2,177 million) dealt with in the accounts of the parent company, for
which no profit and loss account is shown as permitted by Section 230 of the
Companies Act 1985.

10 Dividends 2004 2003
£m £m

First interim 599 597
Second interim 1,314 1,314
1,913 1911

No dividends have been paid on the £100 of 6% non-cumulative redeemable
preference shares issued in the year (see note 39). Dividends are being
accrued at the rate of 6 per cent per annum and the first payment is due in
March 2005.

11 Treasury bills and other eligible bills
2004 2004 2003 2003

Balance Balance
sheet Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Group
Investment securities:
Treasury bills and similar securities 75 77 308 305
Other eligible bills 13 13 222 218
88 90 530 523
Other securities:
Treasury bills and similar securities 4 4 9 9
92 94 539 532
Geographical analysis by issuer:
United Kingdom - 336
Latin America 18 70
Other 74 133
92 539

Included above:
Unamortised discounts net of
premiums on investment securities - 2
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11 Treasury bills and other eligible bills (continued)

Movements in investment Premiums
securities comprise: and
Cost  discounts Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2004 528 2 530
Exchange and other adjustments 3) - 3)
Additions 430 - 430
Bills sold or matured (830) (5) (835)
Adjustments on disposal of businesses (37) - (37)
Amortisation of premiums and discounts - 3 3
At 31 December 2004 88 - 88
2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Bank
Investment securities:
Treasury bills and similar securities 75 77 307 305
Other eligible bills 13 13 213 213
88 90 520 518
Other securities:
Treasury bills and similar securities - - 5 5
88 90 525 523
Geographical analysis by issuer:
United Kingdom - 336
Latin America 18 59
Other 70 130
88 525
Included above:
Unamortised discounts net of
premiums on investment securities - 2
Movements in investment Premiums
securities comprise: and
Cost  discounts Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2004 518 2 520
Exchange and other adjustments (4) - (4)
Additions 421 - 421
Bills sold or matured (820) (5) (825)
Adjustments on disposal of businesses (27) - (27)
Amortisation of premiums and discounts - 3 3
At 31 December 2004 88 - 88

Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basis in the
activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes.

The difference between the cost of other securities and market value, where the
market value is higher than the cost, is not disclosed as its determination is not
practicable.

It is expected that tax of £1 million would be payable (2003: £2 million
recoverable) if the Group’s investment securities were sold at their year end
valuation.
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12 Loans and advances to banks

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Lending to banks 2,483 2,292 59,361 50,520
Deposits placed with banks 21,083 13,273 20,520 12,479
Total loans and advances to banks 23,566 15,565 79,881 62,999
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (1) (18) (1) (18)
23,565 15,547 79,880 62,981
Repayable on demand 2,477 3,768 25,705 24,574
Other loans and advances
by residual maturity repayable:
3 months or less 16,763 7,637 18,322 9,456
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,243 2,329 9,994 6,804
5 years or less but over 1 year 1,422 1,496 23,497 19412
Over 5 years 661 335 2,363 2,753
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (1) (18) (1) (18)
23,565 15,547 79,880 62,981
Included above:
Due from group undertakings
— unsubordinated 56,706 48,033
— subordinated 525 225
13 Loans and advances to customers
Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Lending to customers 146,449 127,551 78,949 73,804
Hire purchase debtors 4,828 4,701 177 58
Equipment leased to customers 6,387 6,470 - -
Total loans and advances to
customers 157,664 138,722 79,126 73,862
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (1,662) (1,677) (1,408) (1,419)
Interest held in suspense (21) (28) 9) (15)
155,981 137,017 77,709 72,428
Loans and advances
by residual maturity repayable:
3 months or less 30,444 25,005 46,944 42,015
1 year or less but over 3 months 9,878 9,458 8,003 6,752
5 years or less but over 1 year 35,301 31,384 15,259 15,075
Over 5 years 82,041 72,875 8,920 10,020
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (1,662) (1,677) (1,408) (1,419
Interest held in suspense (21) (28) 9) (15)
155,981 137,017 77,709 72,428
Of which repayable on
demand or at short notice 17,360 14917 33,783 28,624
Included above:
Due from group undertakings
— all unsubordinated 25,184 27,399
Due from fellow group
undertakings
— all unsubordinated 1,741 1,766 649 684

The cost of assets acquired during the year for letting to customers under
finance leases and hire purchase contracts amounted to £5,472 million
(2003: £4,478 million).
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14 Provisions for bad and doubtful debts and non-performing lending

Group

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments
Adjustments on acquisitions and
disposals

Transfers from general to specific
Advances written off

Recoveries of advances

written off in previous years
Charge to profit and loss account:
New and additional provisions
Releases and recoveries

At 31 December

In respect of:
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Bank

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments
Adjustments on acquisitions and
disposals

Transfers from general to specific
Advances written off

Recoveries of advances

written off in previous years
Charge to profit and loss account:
New and additional provisions
Releases and recoveries

At 31 December

In respect of:
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Non-performing lending comprises:

Accruing loans on which interest
is being placed in suspense
Loans accounted for on a
non-accrual basis

Provisions
Interest held in suspense

2004 2004 2003 2003
Specific General Specific General
£m £m £m £m
1,313 382 1,334 433
(11) - (1) -
(21) (12) (49) (5)
3 3) 50 (50)
(1,028) - (1,145) -
174 - 178 -
1,571 12 1,552 9
(618) (99) (606) (5)
953 (87) 946 4
1,383 280 1,313 382
1,663 1,695
1 18
1,662 1,677
1,663 1,695
1,119 318 1,056 370
(12) - 9) -
(13) (12) 33 (5)
3 3) 50 (50)
(887) - (918) -
154 - 127 -
1,375 12 1,300 8
(587) (58) (520) (5)
788 (46) 780 3
1,152 257 1,119 318
1,409 1,437
1 18
1,408 1,419
1,409 1,437
Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
567 633 332 396
673 585 671 581
1,240 1,218 1,003 977
(914) (916) (707) (737)
(21) (28) 9) (15)
305 274 287 225
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15 Concentrations of exposure

Loans and advances to customers:

Domestic:
Agriculture, forestry and fishing
Manufacturing
Construction
Transport, distribution and
hotels
Property companies
Financial, business and other
services
Personal: mortgages

. other
Lease financing
Hire purchase
Due from fellow group
undertakings
Other

Total domestic
International:
Latin America
USA

Europe

Rest of the world

Total international

Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts*
Interest held in suspense*

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
2,076 2,025 720 684
3,292 3,211 2,611 2,680
1,877 1,497 1,658 1,308
6,753 4,741 5,815 3,980
5,775 4,577 5,122 4,118
12,103 9,652 10,108 7,424
80,065 70,750 338 333
22,833 20,139 19,056 16,990
6,387 6,470 - -
4,828 4,701 176 58
1,741 1,766 25,833 28,083
5,321 3,351 3,492 3,025
153,051 132,880 74,929 68,683
125 557 125 410
2,385 2,681 1,985 2,295
1,587 1,981 1,587 1,981
516 623 500 493
4,613 5,842 4,197 5,179
157,664 138,722 79,126 73,862
(1,662) (1,677) (1,408) (1,419)
(21) (28) 9) (15)
155,981 137,017 77,709 72,428

*Figures exclude provisions and interest held in suspense relating to loans and

advances to banks.

The classification of lending as domestic or international is based on the
location of the office recording the transaction, except for certain lending of the
international business booked in London.
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16 Debt securities

Group

Investment securities:
Government securities

Bank and building society
certificates of deposit
Corporate debt securities
Mortgage backed securities
Other asset backed securities
Other debt securities

Other securities:

Government securities

Other public sector securities
Corporate debt securities
Mortgage backed securities
Other asset backed securities

Due within 1 year
Due 1 year and over

Geographical analysis by issuer:

United Kingdom

Other European

North America and Caribbean
Latin America

Asia Pacific

Other

Unamortised discounts
net of premiums on
investment securities

Investment securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Other securities:
Listed
Unlisted

2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet  Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
2,211 2,213 1,895 1,902
1,901 1,902 2,515 2,515
2,581 2,587 1,895 1,890
2,774 2,781 2,211 2,212
3,761 3,756 3,942 3,951
1,140 1,141 1,283 1,284
14,368 14,380 13,741 13,754
4,524 4,524 7,253 7,253
51 51 106 106
5,733 5,733 6,785 6,785
504 504 664 664
14 14 120 120
25,194 25,206 28,669 28,682
4,090 5,045
21,104 23,624
25,194 28,669
5,048 5,232
11,825 15,949
5,080 5,130
76 98
2,763 1,994
402 266
25,194 28,669
56 341
8,925 8,931 8,162 8,173
5,443 5,449 5,579 5,681
14,368 14,380 13,741 13,754
10,378 10,378 14,374 14,374
448 448 554 554
10,826 10,826 14,928 14,928

16 Debt securities (continued)
Movements in investment securities comprise:

At 1 January 2004

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Transfers from other securities
Securities sold or matured
Adjustments on disposal of
businesses

Charge for the year
Amortisation of premiums

and discounts

At 31 December 2004

Bank

Investment securities:
Government securities

Bank and building society
certificates of deposit
Corporate debt securities
Mortgage backed securities
Other asset backed securities
Other debt securities

Other securities:

Government securities

Other public sector securities
Corporate debt securities
Mortgage backed securities
Other asset backed securities

Due within 1 year
Due 1 year and over

Geographical analysis by issuer:
United Kingdom

Other European

North America and Caribbean
Latin America

Asia Pacific

Other

Unamortised discounts net of
premiums on investment
securities

Premiums
and
Cost  discounts  Provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
13,731 109 99 13,741
(484) - (2) (482)
9,637 - - 9,637
281 - - 281
(8,787) (2) (25) (8,764)
(23) - @ (16)
- - 43 (43)
- 14 - 14
14,355 121 108 14,368
2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet  Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
1,680 1,680 1,372 1,378
1,547 1,547 2,101 2,101
172 176 90 87
927 928 13 13
880 876 343 351
499 500 711 711
5,705 5,707 4,630 4,641
4,524 4,524 7,253 7,253
51 51 106 106
5,733 5,733 6,785 6,785
504 504 664 664
14 14 120 120
16,531 16,533 19,558 19,569
3,287 4,521
13,244 15,037
16,531 19,558
3,046 2,871
8,930 12,197
3,270 3,513
74 96
873 617
338 264
16,531 19,558
1 1
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16 Debt securities (continued) 2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Investment securities:
Listed 2,600 2,598 915 925
Unlisted 3,105 3,109 3,715 3,716
5,705 5,707 4,630 4,641
Other securities:
Listed 10,378 10,378 14,374 14,374
Unlisted 448 448 554 554
10,826 10,826 14,928 14,928
Premiums
- and
Movements in investment Cost  discounts  Provisions Total
securities comprise: £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2004 4,668 - 38 4,630
Exchange and other adjustments (181) - (2) (179)
Additions 8,985 - - 8,985
Transfers from other securities 162 - - 162
Adjustments on disposal of
businesses (22) - (7) (15)
Securities sold or matured (7,878) (1) - (7,879)
Amortisation of premiums and
discounts - 1 - 1
At 31 December 2004 5,734 - 29 5,705

Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basis in the
activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes. It is expected that tax of
£4 million (2003: £3 million) would be payable if the Group’s investment
securities were sold at their year end valuation.

The difference between the cost of other securities and market value, where the
market value is higher than the cost, is not disclosed as its determination is not
practicable.
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17 Equity shares 2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Group
Investment securities:
Listed 5 7 5 5
Unlisted 34 56 30 126
39 63 35 131
Other securities:
Listed 176 176 423 423
215 239 458 554
Movements in investment Cost  Provisions Total
securities comprise: £m £m £m
At 1 January 2004 41 6 35
Exchange and other adjustments (1) (1) -
Additions 21 - 21
Disposals (12) (5) (7)
Adjustments on disposal of businesses (1) - (1)
Charge for the year - 9 9)
At 31 December 2004 48 9 39
2004 2004 2003 2003
Balance Balance
sheet  Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Bank
Investment securities:
Unlisted 17 37 16 21
Other securities:
Listed - - 248 248
17 37 264 269
Movements in investment Cost
securities comprise: £m
At 1 January 2004 16

Additions 1
At 31 December 2004 17

Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basis in the
activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes. If the Group’s investment
securities were sold at their year end valuation no tax is expected to be payable
as any such gains would be exempt or covered by available capital losses.

The difference between the cost of other securities and market value, where the
market value is higher than the cost, is not disclosed as its determination is not
practicable.
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18 Assets transferred under sale and repurchase transactions
Assets subject to sale and repurchase agreements are as follows:

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m

Treasury bills and other
eligible bills 117 136 117 132
Debt securities 10,454 4,503 9,050 2,926

10,571 4,639 9,167 3,058

These investments have been sold to third parties but the Group is committed to
reacquire them at a future date and at a predetermined price. At 31 December
2004, the Group held £12,783 million (2003: £2,643 million) of securities as
collateral under reverse repurchase agreements. The above disclosure includes
assets held through these agreements and subsequently resold as collateral for
the Group’s own transactions.

19 Interests in joint ventures Group Bank

£m £m
At 1 January 2004 54 36
Amounts provided in year - (24)
Revaluations - 23
Losses for the year (1) -
At 31 December 2004 53 35

The Group’s and the Bank’s largest investments are in two joint ventures:

Group interest Nature of business

19.5% of issued
ordinary share capital
25.0% of issued
ordinary share capital

iPSL Cheque processing

GF Two Limited (formerly Financial services

Goldfish Holdings Limited)

In the year ended 31 December 2004 £16 million (2003: £25 million) of fees
payable to iPSL have been included in the Group’s administrative expenses and
£3 million (2003: £3 million) of charges to iPSL have been included in the
Group’s income. The Group has also prepaid £17 million (2003: £13 million)
of fees in respect of 2005 and this amount is included in prepayments and
accrued income.

GF One Limited (formerly Goldfish Bank Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
GF Two Limited) has lent £44 million (2003: nil) to the Bank and this amount
is included in customer accounts. Interest payable to GF One Limited of
£1 million (2003: nil) has been charged to the Group’s profit and loss account
and capitalised in this balance. In the year ended 31 December 2003
£7 million of interest receivable from GF One Limited and £6 million of charges
to GF One Limited in respect of administrative costs were included in the
Group’s income.

On a historical cost basis, the Bank's interests in associated undertakings and
joint ventures would have been included at £54 million (2003: £78 million).

Included in the gross assets disclosed on the balance sheet is an investment of
£3 million (2003: £3 million) in associated undertakings.

20 Shares in group undertakings Bank
£m
At 1 January 2004 19,805
Additions 2
Capital injections 1,371
Disposals (14)
Amounts provided in year (169)
Revaluations 439
At 31 December 2004 21,434
2004 2003
£m £m
Shares in banks 2,955 2,942
Shares in other group undertakings 18,479 16,863
Total — all unlisted 21,434 19,805

On a historical cost basis, shares in group undertakings would have been included as follows:

Cost  Provisions Book value

£m £m £m
At 1 January 2004 16,412 15 16,397
Additions 2 - 2
Capital injections 1,371 - 1,371
Disposals (5) - (5)
Amounts provided in year - 169 (169)
At 31 December 2004 17,780 184 17,596

No deferred tax provision has been made against the liability which could arise
if group undertakings were disposed of at their balance sheet carrying value
because of surplus capital losses and the exemptions for disposals of substantial
shareholding investments.

The principal group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to
31 December and whose results are included in the consolidated accounts of
Lloyds TSB Bank plc, are:

Percentage

of equity

share

Country of capital and
registration/ voting

incorporation  rights held Nature of business

Cheltenham & Gloucester plc England 100%* Mortgage lending and
retail investments

Lloyds TSB Commercial England 100% Credit factoring

Finance Limited

Lloyds TSB Leasing Limited England 100% Financial leasing

The Agricultural Mortgage England 100% Long-term agricultural

Corporation PLC finance

Lloyds TSB Offshore Limited Jersey 100%* Banking and financial
services

Lloyds TSB Asset Finance England 100% Consumer credit,

Division Limited leasing and related
services

Black Horse Limited England 100%* Consumer credit,
leasing and related
services

t!Oy}tiSdTSB Private Banking England 100% Private banking

imite

Lloyds TSB Scotland plc Scotland 100% Banking and financial
services

Lloyds TSB General England 100%* General insurance

Insurance Limited

Scottish Widows Investment England 100%* Investment

Partnership Group Limited management

Abbey Life Assurance England ~ 100%* Life assurance

Company Limited

Lloyds TSB Insurance England 100%* Insurance broking

Services Limited

Scottish Widows plc Scotland 100%* Life assurance

Scottish Widows Annuities Scotland 100%* Life assurance

Limited

*Indirect interest.

The country of registration/incorporation is also the principal area of operation
for each of the above group undertakings.
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21 Quasi-subsidiaries

The Group has interests in a number of entities which, although they do not
meet the legal definition of a subsidiary, give rise to benefits that are in
substance no different from those that would arise if those entities were
subsidiaries. As a consequence, these entities are consolidated in the same way

as if they were subsidiaries.

The primary financial statements of these entities can be summarised as follows:

Equipment leasing

Structured finance

vehicles vehicles
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Profit and loss account
Interest receivable - - 132 82
Interest payable (74) (59) (83) (52)
Other operating income 116 93 (8) (2)
Total income 42 34 41 28
Operating expenses (57) (36) - -
(Loss) profit on ordinary
activities before taxation (15) (2) 41 28
Tax on (loss) profit on ordinary
activities 5 6 (5) (2)
(Loss) profit on ordinary
activities after taxation (10) 4 36 26
Dividends paid - - (24) -
(Loss) profit for the year (10) 4 12 26
Balance sheet
Assets
Loans and advances to customers - - 410 345
Debt securities - - 3,770 3,718
Tangible fixed assets 1,742 1,408 - -
Other assets and prepayments 49 23 36 34
Total assets 1,791 1,431 4,216 4,097
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,527 1,309 - 672
Debt securities in issue - - 3,272 3,123
Other liabilities and accruals 260 108 31 18
Shareholders’ funds 4 14 913 284
Total liabilities 1,791 1,431 4,216 4,097
Cash flow statement
Net cash inflow from operating
activities 388 132 52 1,173
22 Intangible fixed assets Net book
Cost Amortisation value
£m £m £m
Group
Positive goodwill:
At 1 January 2004 2,618 111 2,507
Acquisition adjustments (28) - (28)
Adjustments on disposal of businesses (14) 4) (10)
Charge for the year - 44 (44)
At 31 December 2004 2,576 151 2,425
Negative goodwill:
At 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004 23 23 -
Net book
Cost Amortisation value
£m £m £m
Bank
Positive goodwill:
At 1 January 2004 124 6 118
Adjustments on disposal of businesses (1) (1) -
Charge for the year - 11 (11)
At 31 December 2004 123 16 107

23 Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2004

Exchange and other adjustments
Disposal of businesses
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2004

Exchange and other adjustments
Disposal of businesses

Charge for the year (£589 million in total;

2003: £646 million)
Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Balance sheet amount
at 31 December 2004

Balance sheet amount
at 31 December 2003

Bank

Cost:

At 1 January 2004

Exchange and other adjustments
Disposal of businesses
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2004

Exchange and other adjustments
Disposal of businesses

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Balance sheet amount
at 31 December 2004

Balance sheet amount
at 31 December 2003

Operating
lease
Premises  Equipment assets
£m £m £m
1,191 2,184 2,518
1 1 (46)

(10) (13)

73 262 801
(18) (109) (471)

1,237 2,325 2,802

416 1,295 266
- - @
@ ®) -

66 257 266
(5) (81) (281)

473 1,463 247

764 862 2,555
4,181

775 889 2,252
3,916

Premises Equipment

£m £m
891 1,806
(1) (1)
(7) 3)
62 232
(12) (74)
933 1,960
384 1,016
(1) -
3) -
57 217
4) (62)
433 1,171
500 789
1,289
507 790
1,297
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23 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m

Balance sheet amount of
premises comprises:
Freeholds 349 368 215 225
Leaseholds 50 years and over
unexpired 140 133 32 27
Leaseholds less than 50 years
unexpired 275 274 253 255

764 775 500 507
Land and buildings occupied
for own activities 695 705 443 450

The Group’s residual value exposure in respect of operating lease assets, all of
which are expected to be disposed of at the end of the lease terms, was as

follows:

Residual value expected to be recovered in:

1 year or less
2 years or less but over 1 year
5 years or less but over 2 years
Over 5 years

Total exposure

2004
£m

378
128
647
588

1,741

2003
£m

181
330
505
445

1,461

24 Lease commitments

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lease agreements in

respect of premises were:

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Leases on which the commitment
is due to expire in:
1 year or less 6 7 5 6
5 years or less but over 1 year 26 29 22 27
Over 5 years 176 190 160 174
208 226 187 207
2004 2004 2003 2003
Premises Equipment Premises Equipment
£m £m £m £m
Obligations under finance leases
were:
Group
Amounts payable in:
1 year or less 1 1 - -
5 years or less but over 1 year 3 1 - -
4 2 - -
Bank
Amounts payable in:
1 year or less 1 - - -
5 years or less but over 1 year 3 1 - -
4 1 - -

25 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December 2004
amounted to £150 million for the Group and £4 million for the Bank (2003:
Group £77 million; Bank £6 million). Of the capital commitments of the Group,
£146 million (2003: £71 million) relates to assets to be leased to customers

under operating leases.

26 Other assets Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Balances arising from derivatives
used for trading purposes (note 47a) 2,015 2,489 2,443 2,937
Balances arising from derivatives
used for hedging purposes 254 475 - 27
Settlement balances 40 54 1 13
Other assets 892 907 504 478
3,201 3,925 2,948 3,455
27 Prepayments and accrued income
Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Interest receivable 1,075 869 1,529 1,179
Deferred expenditure incurred
under cash gift and discount
mortgage schemes 78 128 - -
Other debtors and prepayments 1,431 931 342 405
2,584 1,928 1,871 1,684
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28 Long-term assurance business
a Analysis of embedded value
The embedded value included in the consolidated balance sheet comprises:

2004 2003
£m £m
Net tangible assets of life companies including surplus 3,857 3,617
Value of other shareholder’s interests in the long-term

assurance business 2,939 2,879
6,796 6,496

Movements in the embedded value balance have been as follows:
2004 2003
£m £m
At 1 January 6,496 6,228
Exchange and other adjustments (16) 12
Profit after tax 516 296
Adjustments on disposal of businesses - (38)
Dividends (200) (2)
At 31 December 6,796 6,496

b Analysis of income from long-term assurance business

Income from long-term assurance business included in the profit and loss
account can be divided into those items comprising the operating profit of the
business and other items. Included within operating profit are the following
items:

New business contribution: this represents the value recognised at the end of
the year from new business written during the year after taking into account the
cost of establishing technical provisions and reserves, less the costs of acquiring
the business, including commissions paid to independent financial advisers and
other direct sales costs.

Contribution from existing business: this comprises the following elements:

« the expected return arising from the unwinding of the discount applied to the
expected cash flows at the beginning of the year;

« experience variances caused by the differences between the actual experience
during the year and the expected experience;

« the effects of changes in assumptions, other than economic assumptions, and
other items; and

« customer remediation provisions (see c).

Development costs: this represents the costs associated with new product
development and implementation of the bancassurance strategy.

Investment earnings: this represents the expected investment return on both the
net tangible assets and the value of the shareholder’s interest in the long-term
business account, based upon the economic assumptions made at the
beginning of the year.

Operating profit is adjusted by the following items to arrive at income from long-
term assurance business:

Investment variance: this represents (a) the difference between the actual
investment return in the year on investments backing shareholder funds and the
expected return based upon the economic assumptions made at the beginning
of the year; (b) the effect of these fluctuations on the value of in-force business;
and (c) other effects of changes in extraneous economic circumstances beyond
the control of management.
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28 Long-term assurance business (continued)
Changes in economic assumptions: this represents the effect of changes in the
economic assumptions referred to in e.

Income from long-term assurance business is set out below:

2004 2003
£m £m
New business contribution 225 150
Existing business:
Expected return 289 264
Experience variances (41) (16)
Assumption changes and other items (39) (75)
Customer remediation provisions (see c) (12) (100)
197 73
Development costs (11) (13)
Investment earnings 167 153
Operating profit 578 363
Investment variance 139 112
Changes in economic assumptions (see e) (2) (22)
Income from long-term assurance business before tax 715 453
Attributed tax (199) (157)
Income from long-term assurance business after tax 516 296

¢ Customer remediation provisions

Redress to past purchasers of pension policies

Following an industry wide investigation in the 1990’s it was concluded that a
large number of customers who had purchased personal pension products had
been poorly advised by insurance companies and intermediaries; an action plan
was established requiring the UK pensions industry to review all cases of
possible misselling and, where appropriate, pay compensation. As the review of
pension cases in the Group has progressed, provisions have been established
for the estimated cost of compensation.

Movements in the provision over the last two years have been as follows:

2004 2003

£m £m

At 1 January 25 37
Accrual of interest on the provision - 2
Charge for the year - 44
Compensation paid (12) (58)
At 31 December 13 25

The review is now nearing completion and management do not expect any
further material changes in the provisioning requirement.
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28 Long-term assurance business (continued)

Mortgage endowments and other savings products

During 2002, a review was carried out in conjunction with the FSA into sales of
mortgage endowment and other long-term savings products made by the Abbey
Life sales force between 1988 and its disposal by Lloyds TSB Group in February
2000. As a result of this review, the Group is required to pay compensation to
customers in those cases where sales practices are found to have been
deficient. A provision has been established to meet the cost of the payments to
those customers; a provision is also held against the estimated cost of redress
payments to customers in respect of products sold by the Abbey Life sales force
prior to 1988. During 2004 management has reviewed the adequacy of the
provisions held in the light of experience and changing market conditions and
an additional charge of £12 million (2003: £56 million) has been made.

Movements in the provision over the last two years have been as follows:

2004 2003

£m £m

At 1 January 149 165
Accrual of interest on the provision 3 5
Charge for the year 12 56
Compensation paid (140) (77)
At 31 December 24 149

Details of the provisions held in respect of the estimated cost of making redress
payments to customers in respect of past product sales by the Group’s banking
operations are given in note 36.

d With-profits options and guarantees

In common with other organisations in the life assurance industry, prior to its
demutualisation Scottish Widows wrote policies which contained potentially
valuable options and guarantees, including guaranteed annuity option policies.
Under the terms of transfer of the Scottish Widows business, a separate
memorandum account was created within the With-Profits Fund called the
Additional Account, which is available, inter alia, to meet any additional costs of
providing guaranteed benefits on transferred policies; the Additional Account
had a value at 31 December 2004 of £1.4 billion (2003: £1.4 billion). To the
extent that the Additional Account is insufficient to provide these benefits any
shortfall would be met by the Group.

28

28 Long-term assurance business (continued)

Since demutualisation in 2000, Scottish Widows continued to write policies
containing similar features, although the volume of products written has since
reduced and is now not significant. The Additional Account is not available to
meet any additional cost of providing the benefits on these policies.

The eventual cost of providing benefits on the policies written both pre and post
demutualisation is dependent upon a large number of variables, including in
particular:

« future interest rate and equity market trends;
« demographic factors, such as future persistency and mortality; and
« the proportion of policyholders who seek to exercise their options.

The ultimate cost, and any impact upon the Group, will not be known for many
years. However, Scottish Widows has developed, and will continue to develop,
an actuarial model to assist in the management of the With-Profits Fund and to
meet regulatory requirements. The model allows management to estimate the
effects of different economic scenarios upon the financial position of the fund
and consider the implications of different management actions. Output from this
model indicates that the possible cost of providing benefits on policies
containing features such as options and guarantees varies widely and,
depending on the economic scenario encountered, could result in the Group
incurring a liability. Based on the information available at present, having
considered the range of possible outcomes, and after making allowance for the
effect of proposed future management actions, the Group currently considers
that no provision is necessary. However, the model is subject to ongoing
development and the position will be kept under review.
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28 Long-term assurance business (continued)

e Assumptions

In accordance with the Association of British Insurers’ detailed guidance for
the preparation of figures using the achieved profits method of accounting, the
Group has reviewed the economic assumptions used in the embedded value
calculations. The guidance requires that the assumptions should be reviewed at
each reporting date.

The principal economic assumptions have been revised at 31 December 2004
as follows:

2004 2003
% %

Risk-adjusted discount rate (net of tax) 7.40 7.60
Return on equities (gross of tax) 7.17 7.45
Return on fixed interest securities (gross of tax) 4.57 4.85
Expenses inflation 3.76 3.80

The revised assumptions have resulted in a net charge to the profit and loss
account of £2 million.

Other assumptions used to derive the embedded value are as follows:

Assumed rates of mortality and morbidity are taken from published tables
adjusted for demographic differences. Assumptions in respect of lapse rates
take into account both the effect of recent actual experience and future
expectations of the companies concerned.

Current tax legislation and rates have been assumed to continue unaltered,
except where future changes have been announced. The UK corporation tax
rate used for grossing up was 30 per cent (2003: 30 per cent). The
normalised investment earnings have been grossed up at a composite longer
term tax rate of 18 per cent (2003: 17 per cent).

The value of the in-force business does not allow for future premiums under
recurring single premium business or non-contractual increments, which are
included in new business when the premium is received. Department of
Social Security rebates have been treated as recurring single premiums.

Future bonus rates on with-profits business are set at levels which would fully
utilise the assets supporting the with-profits business. The proportion of profits
derived from with-profits business allocated to the shareholder has been
assumed to continue at the current rate of one-ninth of the cost of the eligible
bonus, in accordance with the terms of the transfer of the Scottish Widows
business.

f Sensitivities

The table below shows the effect on both the embedded value at 31 December
2004 and the new business contribution for the year then ended of theoretical
changes in the main economic assumptions:

New

Embedded business

value contribution

£m £m

As published 6,796 225
Effect of a 1% increase in the discount rate (189) (26)
Effect of a 1% reduction in the discount rate 213 30
Effect of a 1% reduction in the return on equities (84) (12)

28 Long-term assurance business (continued)
g Balance sheet
The long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders comprise:

2004 2003
£m £m
Investments 56,975 52,097
Premises and equipment 35 40
Other assets 1,741 1,680
58,751 53,817
Net tangible assets of life companies including surplus (3,857) (3,617)
54,894 50,200
Investments shown above comprise:
Fixed interest securities 15,985 15,947
Stocks, shares and unit trusts 31,911 27,605
Investment properties 3,150 3,540
Other properties 120 121
Mortgages and loans 76 65
Deposits 5,733 4,819
56,975 52,097
The liabilities to policyholders comprise:
Technical provisions:
Long-term business provision (net of reinsurance) 23,705 23,730

Claims outstanding (net of reinsurance) 246 238

Technical provisions for linked liabilities 28,256 25,023
Fund for future appropriations 1,379 346
Other liabilities 1,308 863

54,894 50,200

h Disclosures on a modified statutory solvency basis

The individual statutory accounts of the Group’s life assurance subsidiaries are
prepared under the modified statutory solvency basis, in the same way as the
statutory accounts of listed insurance groups in the UK. The principal difference
between the modified statutory solvency basis and the embedded value basis
used for the preparation of the Group’s accounts is that accounts prepared under
the modified statutory solvency basis do not reflect the value of in-force business.

Under the modified statutory solvency basis, the results of the Group’s long-
term life and pensions businesses were as follows:

2004 2003
£m £m
Premiums 5,575 5,139
Investment income 1,981 2,073
Unrealised gains on investments 2,815 4,833
Other income - 6
10,371 12,051
Claims (5,222) (4,433)
Change in technical provisions (3,208) (4,540)
Expenses (535) (689)
Realised gains (losses) on investments 244 (1,679)
Unrealised losses on investments - (22)
Other charges - (4)
Tax attributable to long-term business (110) (41)
Transfer to the fund for future appropriations (1,084) (414)
Balance on the technical account — long-term business 456 229
Tax attributable to balance on the
technical account — long-term business 155 112
Income in shareholder fund 55 34
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 666 375
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (170) (125)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 496 250
Dividends proposed (200) -

Profit for the financial year 296 250
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28 Long-term assurance business (continued)
Income from long-term assurance business after tax reconciles to the profit
calculated on a modified statutory solvency basis as follows:

2004 2003
£m £m

Income from long-term assurance business attributable to
the shareholder after tax 516 296
Increase in value-in-force taken to profit (60) (2)

456 294
Other differences:
— movement in deferred acquisition costs 89 66
- tax adjustment 7 (60)
— other (56) (50)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax
— modified statutory solvency basis 496 250
A summarised balance sheet on a modified statutory solvency basis was as
follows:

2004 2003

£m £m

Assets
Investments 29,084 27,483
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 28,256 25,023
Other assets 1,992 2,018
Total assets 59,332 54,524
Liabilities
Shareholder’s funds 4,596 4,249
Fund for future appropriations 1,379 346
Long-term business provisionf 23,705 23,730
Technical provision for linked liabilitiest 28,256 25,023
Other creditors 1,396 1,176
Total liabilities 59,332 54,524

tNet of reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

The value of long-term business attributable to the shareholder on an
embedded value basis reconciles to the net assets of the Group’s life and
pensions subsidiaries calculated on a modified statutory solvency basis as
follows:

2004 2003
£m £m
Long-term assurance business attributable to the
shareholder — embedded value basis 6,796 6,496
Value of in-force business (2,939) (2,879)
3,857 3,617
Other differences:
— deferred acquisition costs 585 496
— tax adjustment 152 145
— other adjustments 2 (9)
Net tangible assets of life operations
— modified statutory solvency basis 4,596 4,249
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29 Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Group Bank

2004 2003 2004 2003

£m £m £m £m

Assets: denominated in sterling 173,452 155,539 152,856 139,392

: denominated in other

currencies 53,375 48,159 51,467 45,161

226,827 203,698 204,323 184,553

Liabilities: denominated in sterling 173,335 155,533 152,764 139,383
: denominated in other

currencies 53,492 48,165 51,559 45,170

226,827 203,698 204,323 184,553

Assets and liabilities exclude long-term assurance assets attributable to
policyholders and liabilities to policyholders.

30 Deposits by banks Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Repayable on demand 5,183 7,455 8,997 11,020
Other deposits by banks with
agreed maturity dates or periods of
notice by residual maturity
repayable:
3 months or less 31,833 15,002 33,441 16,469
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,500 1,197 3,866 1,492
5 years or less but over 1 year 21 69 1,264 1,048
Over 5 years 201 232 - 182
39,738 23,955 47,568 30,211
Included above:
Due to group undertakings 8,738 7,030
31 Customer accounts Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Repayable on demand 94,138 90,987 74,661 74977
Other customer accounts with
agreed maturity dates or periods of
notice by residual maturity
repayable:
3 months or less 18,938 17,316 16,431 16,595
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,442 1,846 2,100 1,877
5 years or less but over 1 year 5,632 5,431 5,268 4,258
Over 5 years 1,204 1,364 2,248 2,434
122,354 116,944 100,708 100,141
Included above:
Due to group undertakings 10,141 13,980
Due to fellow group undertakings 292 448 218 376
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32 Debt securities in issue Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Bonds and medium-term notes by
residual maturity repayable:
1 year or less 167 711 167 711
2 years or less but over 1 year 144 81 144 81
5 years or less but over 2 years 1,053 1,099 787 769
Over 5 years 3,999 3,623 3,999 3,623
5,363 5,514 5,097 5,184
Other debt securities by residual
maturity repayable:
3 months or less 18,489 | |17,942| |15,114| |14,729
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,941 2,015 2,928 1,982
5 years or less but over 1 year 424 283 268 265
Over 5 years - 168 - -
21,854 20,408 18,310 16,976
27,217 25,922 23,407 22,160
33 Other liabilities Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Balances arising from derivatives
used for trading purposes
(note 47a) 3,343 3,719 3,692 4,002
Balances arising from derivatives
used for hedging purposes 525 283 423 -
Current tax 380 317 136 (49)
Dividends 1,314 1,314 1,314 1,314
Settlement balances 38 40 3 3
Other liabilities 970 1,116 682 781
6,570 6,789 6,250 6,051
34 Accruals and deferred income Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Interest payable 1,530 1,165 1,540 1,222
Other creditors and accruals 2,382 2,077 725 913
3,912 3,242 2,265 2,135

31

35 Deferred tax Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Short-term timing differences (193) (222) (169) (197)

Accelerated depreciation

allowances 1,669 1,605 38 9
1,476 1,383 (131) (188)
Group Bank
£m £m
At 1 January 2004 1,383 (188)
Exchange and other adjustments 27) -
Adjustments on disposal of assets (22) -
Charge for the year 142 57
At 31 December 2004 1,476 (131)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the retained earnings of overseas
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date,
dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute
past earnings in the future has been entered into. Deferred tax balances have

not been discounted.

The deferred tax balance at 31 December 2004 for the Group does not include
any amounts in respect of the Group’s post-retirement benefit liability which is
shown on the balance sheet after deduction of a deferred tax asset of
£956 million (2003: £916 million) (note 45).

36 Other provisions for liabilities and charges

Vacant
Customer leasehold
remediation  Insurance property
provisions  provisions and other Total
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 January 2004 97 219 86 402
Exchange and other adjustments - (6) - (6)
Adjustments on disposal - - (1) (1)
Provisions applied (105) (203) (13) (321)
Charge for the year 100 224 19 343
At 31 December 2004 92 234 91 417
Bank
At 1 January 2004 67 - 75 142
Provisions applied (87) - (12) (99)
Charge for the year 100 - 17 117
At 31 December 2004 80 - 80 160

Customer remediation provisions

The Group establishes provisions for the estimated cost of making redress
payments to customers in respect of past product sales, where the original sales
processes are found to have been deficient. During 2004 management have
again reviewed the adequacy of the provisions held having regard to current
complaint volumes and the level of payments being made and as a result an
additional charge of £100 million (2003: £200m) has been made.

At 31 December 2004 the provisions held mainly related to past sales of
mortgage endowment policies. Mortgage endowments were sold to customers
through the branch network of Lloyds TSB Bank, Lloyds TSB Scotland and
Cheltenham & Gloucester, and underwritten by life assurance companies within

the Group and also by third parties.
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36 Other provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

The principal assumptions that have been made in the calculation of the
provision relate to the number of cases that are likely to require redress and the
estimated average cost per case. The ultimate cost and timing of the payments
remains highly uncertain and will be influenced by external factors beyond the
control of management, such as regulatory actions, media interest and the
performance of the financial markets. However, it is expected that the majority
of the expenditure will be incurred over the next two years.

Insurance provisions

The Group’s general insurance subsidiary maintains provisions for outstanding
claims which represent the ultimate cost of settling all claims arising from
events which have occurred up to the balance sheet date and these include
provisions for the cost of claims notified but not settled and for claims incurred
but not yet reported. In addition, in line with the requirements of the Insurance
Companies (Reserves) Act 1995, a claims equalisation provision is maintained
in relation to property business. The majority of provisions in respect of claims
will be settled in the following year, although new provisions will then be
required in respect of claims arising from that year. The level of the claims
equalisation provision will be adjusted annually, taking into account the
guidelines contained in the legislation, and such provisions will be held for as
long as the Group continues to write the relevant types of general insurance
business.

The Group also carries provisions in respect of its obligations relating to UIC
Insurance Company Limited (‘UIC"), which is partly owned by the Group. The
Group has indemnified a third party against losses in the event that UIC does
not honour its obligations under a reinsurance contract, which is subject to
asbestosis and pollution claims in the US. The ultimate exposure to claims in
respect of the insurance business of UIC is uncertain. Accordingly, the provision
has been based upon an actuarial estimate of prospective claims, taking
account of reinsurance arrangements protecting UIC and UIC'’s available assets.
Given the long-term nature of many of the claims to which UIC is exposed, it is
expected to be many years before the Group’s ultimate liability can be assessed
with certainty.

Vacant leasehold property and other

Vacant leasehold property provisions are made by reference to a prudent
estimate of expected sub-let income and the possibility of disposing of the
Group’s interest in the lease, taking into account conditions in the property
market. These provisions are reassessed on an annual basis and will run off
during the remaining life of the leases concerned, the run off period currently
averages 5 years; where a property is disposed of earlier than anticipated, any
remaining balance in the provision relating to that property is released.

32
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37 Subordinated liabilities Notes Group Bank

2004 2003 2004 2003

£m £m £m £m

Undated loan capital*y:
Primary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes: a
Series 1 (US$750 million) 389 419 389 419
Series 2 (US$500 million) 259 279 259 279
Series 3 (US$600 million) 311 335 311 335
113/,% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 100 100 - -
6.625% Perpetual Capital Securities (€750 million) b 526 523 526 523
6.90% Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2007 (US$1,000 million) c 512 550 512 550
55/s% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 million) f 877 874 877 874
Undated Step-up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 million) a 105 105 105 105
6%/5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 e 407 407 407 407
7.375% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2012 (€430 million) - - 302 301
6.35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2013 (€500 million) d, f 350 349 350 349
7.834% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2015 - - 248 248
5.57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20 billion) g 101 104 101 104

5.125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 497 496 497 496

6'/,% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 e 267 267 267 267
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 e 199 199 199 199
6'/,% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 e 455 455 455 455
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Bonds callable 2032 e 500 500 500 500
5,855 5,962 6,305 6,411
Dated loan capital:
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2004 - 5 - -
7%/5% Subordinated Bonds 2004 - 400 - 400
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2004 - 100 - 100
73/4% Subordinated Bonds 2007 299 299 299 299
5%/,% Subordinated Notes 2008 (DM750 million) 270 269 270 269
10%/3% Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 107 108 107 108
9'/,% Subordinated Bonds 2009 100 100 100 100
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2009 callable 2004 (US$500 million) - 279 - 279
6'/,% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 million) 281 281 281 281
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2010 (US$400 million) a 207 223 207 223
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 114 116 114 116
43/,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 million) 582 578 582 578
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 150 150 - -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 100 100 - -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 i 200 200 - -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 i 150 150 - -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 464 464 464 464
57/3% Subordinated Notes 2014 148 148 148 148
6°/3% Subordinated Notes 2015 345 345 345 345
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 million) a, h 353 - 353 -
53/,% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 h 346 - 346 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 million) a 70 70 70 70
95/5% Subordinated Bonds 2023 338 339 338 339
Subordinated Non-Interest Bearing Loan on rolling 6 year notice 150 150 150 150
4,774 4,874 4,174 4,269
Total subordinated liabilities 10,629 10,836 10,479 10,680

These liabilities will, in the event of the winding-up of the issuer, be subordinated to the claims of depositors and all other creditors of the issuer.

* In certain circumstances, these notes and bonds would acquire the characteristics of preference share capital.

+ Any repayments of undated loan capital would require the prior consent of the Financial Services Authority.

a) These notes bear interest at rates fixed periodically in advance based on London interbank rates.

b) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these securities can be deferred although in this case neither Lloyds TSB Bank plc nor Lloyds TSB Group plc can declare or pay
a dividend until any deferred payments have been made. In the event of a winding up of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, these securities will acquire the characteristics of preference
shares. The securities can be redeemed at par at the option of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on or after 25 October 2006.

¢) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these securities can be deferred although in this case neither Lloyds TSB Bank plc nor Lloyds TSB Group plc can declare or pay
a dividend until payments are resumed. Any deferred payments will be made good on redemption of the securities. In the event of a winding up of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, these
securities will acquire the characteristics of preference shares. The securities can be redeemed at par at the option of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on or after 22 November 2007.

d) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these securities can be deferred although in this case neither Lloyds TSB Bank plc nor Lloyds TSB Group plc can declare or pay
a dividend until any deferred payments have been made. In the event of a winding up of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, these securities will acquire the characteristics of preference
shares. The securities can be redeemed at par at the option of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on or after 25 February 2013.

e) At the callable date, the coupon on these Notes will be reset by reference to the applicable five year benchmark gilt rate.

f) In the event that these Notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset to a floating rate.

g) In the event that these Notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset to a fixed margin over the then 5 year yen swap rate.

h) Issued during 2004 primarily to finance the general business of the Group.

i) The repayment date of these notes has been extended during the year.
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37 Subordinated liabilities (continued)
Dated subordinated liabilities are repayable as follows:

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
1 year or less - 505 - 500
5 years or less but over 2 years 776 1,026 776 676
Over 5 years 3,998 3,343 3,398 3,093
4,774 4,874 4,174 4,269
38 Non-equity minority interests
Non-equity minority interests comprise: 2004 2003
£m £m
Euro Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred
Securities (€430 million) callable 2012* 302 301
Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred
Securities callable 2015** 248 248
Capital instruments 550 549
European Financial Institution Investments Partnershipt - 100
LM ABS Investment Partnershipt+ - 34
550 683

*These securities constitute limited partnership interests in Lloyds TSB Capital 1
L.P., a Jersey limited partnership in which Lloyds TSB (General Partner)
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the general partner.
Non-cumulative income distributions accrue at a fixed rate of 7.375 per cent
per annum up to 7 February 2012; thereafter they will accrue at a rate of
233 basis points above EURIBOR, to be set annually.

**These securities constitute limited partnership interests in Lloyds TSB Capital 2
L.P., a Jersey limited partnership in which Lloyds TSB (General Partner)
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the general partner. Non-
cumulative income distributions accrue at a fixed rate of 7.834 per cent per
annum up to 7 February 2015; thereafter they will accrue at a rate of 350 basis
points above a rate based on the yield of specified UK government stock.

Both of these issues were made under the limited subordinated guarantee of
Lloyds TSB Bank plc. In certain circumstances these preferred securities will be
mandatorily exchanged for preference shares in Lloyds TSB Group plc. Lloyds
TSB Bank plc has entered into an agreement whereby dividends may only be
paid on its ordinary shares if sufficient distributable profits are available for
distributions due in the financial year on these preferred securities.

tThese securities constituted interests in European Financial Institution

Investments Partnership, an English law general partnership in which the
principal partner was Langbourn Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group. During 2004 the partnership was dissolved and the capital
returned to the partners.

f1These securities constituted interests in LM ABS Investment Partnership, an
English law general partnership in which the principal partner was Lime Street
(Funding) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During 2004 the
partnership was dissolved and the capital returned to the partners.
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39 Called-up share capital 2004

£m
1,650

2003
£m

1,650

Authorised: 1,650 million ordinary shares of £1 each

. 1 cumulative floating rate preference
share of £1 - _

: 100 6% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference shares of £1 each - -

Issued and fully paid:
: ordinary shares of £1 each

At 1 January and 31 December 1,542

: Cumulative floating rate preference
share of £1
At 1 January and 31 December - -

During the year the directors approved the creation and allotment at par of 100
6% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each. The shares,
which are redeemable at the option of the Bank at any time, carry the rights to a
fixed rate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6% per annum; no
dividend shall be payable in the event that the directors determine that prudent
capital ratios would not be maintained if the dividend were paid. Upon winding
up, the shares rank equally with any other preference shares issued by
the Bank.

The company regarded by the directors as the ultimate parent company is
Lloyds TSB Group plc, which is also the parent undertaking of the only group of
undertakings for which consolidated accounts are drawn up and of which the
Bank is a member. Copies of the group accounts may be obtained from the
company secretary, Lloyds TSB Group plc, 25 Gresham Street, London
EC2V 7HN.

40 Reserves

Group Bank
£m £m

Share premium account:
At 1 January and 31 December 2004 2,960 2,960
Revaluation reserve:
At 1 January 2004 3,374
Transfer to profit and loss account 9)
Increase in net tangible assets of subsidiary
undertakings and joint ventures 462
At 31 December 2004 3,827
Profit and loss account:
At 1 January 2004 6,231 4,793
Exchange and other adjustments (11) 1

Transfer from revaluation reserve - 9
Actuarial losses recognised in post-retirement

benefit schemes (note 45) (166) -
Goodwill written back on sale of businesses 3
Profit (loss) for the year 497

At 31 December 2004 6,554

(42)
4,761

The Group profit and loss account reserves at 31 December 2004 are stated
after including a deficit of £2,231 million relating to the Group’s post-retirement
defined benefit schemes (2003: £2,139 million).

The cumulative amount of premiums on acquisitions written off against Group
profit and loss account reserves during previous years amounts to £782 million
of which £747 million was within the last 10 years.
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41 Shareholders’ funds

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Equity 11,056 10,733 13,090 12,669
Non-equity - - - -

11,056 10,733 13,090 12,669

Non-equity shareholders’ funds comprise 100 non-cumulative redeemable
preference shares of £1 each which were issued during 2004 at par.

42 Directors’ interests

The directors are also directors of Lloyds TSB Group plc and their interests in the
share and loan capital of Lloyds TSB Group plc and its subsidiaries are shown
in the report and accounts of that company.

43 Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate of the emoluments of the directors was £8,478,000
(2003: £7,045,000).

The aggregate of the amount of the gains made by directors on the exercise of
Lloyds TSB Group plc share options was £492 (2003: £295,000).

The numbers of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing under
defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes were 2 and 6
respectively (2003: 1 and 9).

The total for the highest paid director (Mr Daniels), was £1,903,000. The
amount of his accrued pension at the year end was £77,000, being his pension
entitlement based on pensionable service with the Group to 31 December
2004 but payable at normal retirement age. (The total for the highest paid
director in 2003 (Mr Fairey), was £1,140,000).

44 Related party transactions

a Transactions, arrangements and agreements involving directors and others
At 31 December 2004, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered
into by the Group’s banking subsidiaries with directors and connected persons
and with officers included:

2004 2004 2003 2003
Number of Total Number of Total
persons £000 persons £000

Loans and credit card transactions:
Directors and connected persons 4 3,217 6 3,199
Officers 22 6,747 30 5,355

During 2003 one officer purchased a car from the Group for a consideration of
£27,000.

b Group undertakings

Details of the principal group undertakings are given in note 20. In accordance
with FRS 8, transactions or balances with group entities that have been
eliminated on consolidation are not reported.

c Joint ventures

Details of the Group’s joint ventures are provided in note 19. Information
relating to transactions entered into between Group undertakings and the joint
ventures and details of outstanding balances at 31 December 2004 are also
shown in note 19.
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44 Related party transactions (continued)

d Long-term assurance business

The Group enters into transactions with its long-term assurance businesses,
which cannot be eliminated in the consolidated accounts because of the basis
of accounting used for the Group’s long-term assurance businesses. After taking
into account legally enforceable netting agreements, at 31 December 2004
Group entities owed £2,254 million (2003: £1,995 million) and were owed
£97 million (2003: £136 million); these amounts are included in customer
accounts and loans and advances to customers respectively. Furthermore
Scottish Widows plc has provided £50 million (2003: £30 million) of
subordinated loan capital to Scottish Widows Bank plc, which is included in
other liabilities. In addition, fees of £201 million (2003: £107 million) were
received, and fees of £49 million (2003: £71 million) were paid, in respect of
distribution, asset management and other services.

Certain administrative properties used by Scottish Widows are owned by the
long-term assurance funds. During 2004 Scottish Widows paid rent to the long-
term assurance funds amounting to £5 million (2003: £5 million). In addition,
at 31 December 2004, the long-term assurance funds owned 30.5 million
ordinary shares in the Bank’s parent company Lloyds TSB Group plc (2003:
30.5 million shares).

e Pension funds

Group entities provide a number of banking and other services to the Group’s
pension funds, which are conducted on similar terms to third party transactions.
At 31 December 2004, the Group’s pension funds had call deposits with the
Bank amounting to £14 million (2003: £16 million).

45 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
a The Group accounts

The pension costs included in administrative expenses are comprised as

follows:
2004 2003
£m £m
Defined contribution schemes 32 33
Defined benefit schemes 306 320
338 353

The majority of the Group’s employees are members of the defined benefit
sections of Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No’s 1 and 2. During 2003
and 2004, no contributions have been made to the Lloyds TSB Group Pension
Scheme No. 2. However, with effect from 1 July 2003 the Group
recommenced contributions to the Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme No. 1
at a rate of 31.7 per cent of pensionable salary; this was increased to 56.5 per
cent of pensionable salary with effect from 1 January 2004. Since the defined
benefit sections of these schemes are now closed to new members and the age
profile of the active members is increasing, under the projected unit method, the
current service cost will increase as the members of the schemes approach
retirement.

The latest full valuations of the above schemes were carried out as at 30 June
2002; these have been updated to 31 December 2004 by qualified
independent actuaries. The last full valuations of other group schemes were
carried out on a number of different dates; these have been updated to
31 December 2004 by qualified independent actuaries or, in the case of the
Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a qualified actuary employed
by Scottish Widows.
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45 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The principal assumptions used in the scheme valuations were as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2004 2003 2002

% % %

Rate of inflation 2.60 2.50 2.30

Rate of salary increases 4.14 4.04 3.83
Rate of increase for pensions in

payment and deferred pensions 2.60 2.50 2.30

Discount rate 5.30 5.40 5.60

In addition, the Group operates a number of schemes which provide
post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain employees, retired employees
and their dependent relatives. The principal scheme relates to former Lloyds
Bank staff and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of
post-retirement healthcare for all eligible former employees (and their
dependants) who retired prior to 1 January 1996. For retirements
subsequent to this date, the Group also met a reducing proportion of the cost
until 31 December 2004, since which date the only obligation is in respect of
the pre 1 January 1996 retirements.

Included within other finance income is an interest cost of £4 million
(2003: £5 million) in respect of these defined benefit post-retirement
healthcare schemes.

For the principal post-retirement healthcare scheme, the latest actuarial
valuation of the liability was carried out at 31 December 2000; this valuation
has been updated to 31 December 2004 by qualified independent actuaries.
The principal assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of
increase in healthcare premiums has been assumed at 6.7 per cent.

The assets of the Group’s defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of
return are summarised as follows:

Expected Expected Expected

long-term long-term long-term

Fair value rate of Fair value rate of Fair value rate of
at return at at  return at at return at

31 31 31 31 31 31

December December December December December December
2004 2004 2003 2003 2002 2002

£m % £m % £m %
Market values of
scheme assets:
Equities 8,042 8.2 7,454 8.1 7,175 8.4
UK fixed interest
gilts 550 4.6 551 4.8 557 4.5
UK index linked
gilts 561 4.3 545 4.4 - -
Sterling non-
government bonds 941 5.3 1,033 5.4 491 5.6
Property 959 6.9 713 7.1 791 6.9
Cash 611 3.6 307 3.5 69 3.8
Total fair value of
scheme assets 11,664 10,603 9,083

2004 2003

Other finance income is comprised of: £m £m
Expected return on scheme assets 764 696
Interest cost of scheme liabilities (725) (662)
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45 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The pension and other post-retirement benefit cost in respect of defined benefit
schemes is comprised of:

2004 2003

£m £m

Current service cost 289 269
Past service costs 17 51
Defined benefit costs 306 320

The amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
are comprised of:

2004 2003
£m £m
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 369 802
Experience gains and losses arising on scheme liabilities (114) 94
Effect of changes in demographic and financial
assumptions (492) (902)
Actuarial losses recognised (237) (6)
Deferred tax thereon 71 2
Amount recognised in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses (166) (4)

The experience gains and losses recognised can also be analysed as follows:

2004 2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m

Actual return less expected return
on scheme assets

Amount 369 802
Percentage of scheme assets at
balance sheet date

Experience gains and losses arising
on scheme liabilities

Amount

Percentage of scheme liabilities at
balance sheet date

Total amount recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains
and losses

Amount

Percentage of scheme liabilities at
balance sheet date

(2,582) (2,015)

3.2% 7.6% 28.4% 18.1%

(114) 94 (240) (71)

0.8% 0.7% 2.0% 0.7%

(237) (6) (3,299) (2,873)

1.6% 0.0% 27.5% 26.9%

The amounts reported on the Group’s balance sheet are comprised of:

2004 2003

£m £m

Market value of assets 11,664 10,603
Present value of scheme liabilities (14,851) (13,658)
Deficit in the schemes (3,187) (3,055)
Related deferred tax asset 956 916
Net post-retirement benefit liability (2,231) (2,139)
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45 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The movements in the deficit in the schemes over the year have been as
follows:

2004 2003

£m £m

Deficit at beginning of year (3,055) (2,931)
Exchange and other adjustments (2) (4)
Other finance income 39 34
Current service costs (289) (269)
Contributions 374 138
Past service costs (17) (51)
Actuarial loss (237) (6)
Adjustments on disposal - 34
Deficit at end of year (3,187) (3,055)

b The Bank accounts

The majority of the Bank’s employees are members of the Group’s two main
pension schemes, Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2, along
with employees of a number of the Bank's subsidiaries. Because it is not
possible to separately identify the amount of any surpluses or deficits in these
schemes relating to each employing company, in the accounts of the Bank,
these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes.

46 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m
Contingent liabilities:
Acceptances and endorsements 71 299 37 269
Guarantees 6,786 6,122 6,899 6,150
Other:
Other items serving as direct
credit substitutes 345 1,069 347 1,095
Performance bonds and other
transaction-related contingencies 1,324 1,534 1,339 1,552
Other contingent liabilities - 1 - 1
1,669 2,604 1,686 2,648
8,526 9,025 8,622 9,067

Commitments:

Documentary credits and other

short-term trade-related

transactions 431 368 406 422
Forward asset purchases and

forward forward deposits placed 1,654 546 1,654 546

Undrawn formal standby facilities,

credit lines and other commitments

to lend:

— Less than 1 year maturity 63,196 62,440 60,922 60,771

— 1 year or over maturity 20,009 15,981 18,810 14,89
85,290 79,335 81,792 76,635

Incurred on behalf of group

undertakings:

Contingent liabilities 186 127

Commitments 4 72

190 199

47 Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Group’s activities can be divided into three broad categories: banking and
mortgages, insurance and investments, and trading activities.

Banking and mortgage activities represent the most significant element of the
Group’s business in terms of profit, assets and exposure to risk. These activities
are entered into in both the UK and overseas and principally comprise the
Group'’s core business of lending and deposit taking, involving a full range of
personal and corporate customers. In entering into this business, the Group’s
objective is to secure a margin between the interest paid to customers on their
deposits and interest received on amounts advanced. In order to do this, more
complex financial instruments, such as derivatives, are used as a means of
reducing risk by hedging exposures to movements in exchange rates, interest
rates or other market variables.

Within its banking activities, the Group has a number of treasury operations that
are responsible for utilising surplus funds and meeting funding shortfalls by
entering into transactions in the money markets. Portfolios of debt securities
and treasury bills are held to provide a source of liquidity. It is the Group’s
intention to hold these investments until maturity although in certain
circumstances they may be disposed of before then where, for example, the
need to hold the investment no longer applies. Any profits or losses arising from
a sale of this kind are recognised immediately.

Insurance and investment businesses provide general insurance and market
savings and investment products both within and outside the banking customer
bases. Fund management services are also provided although, whilst involving
external clients, this activity is currently dominated by the management of
internal group funds.

Trading activities are restricted to a few highly specialist authorised trading
centres, the principal one being the Group’s Treasury department in London.
Most of the Group’s trading activity is to meet the requirements of customers for
foreign exchange and interest rate products, from which the Group is able to
earn a spread on the rates charged. However, interest rate and exchange rate
positions are taken out using derivatives (forward foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements) and on-balance sheet
instruments (mainly debt securities). The objective of these positions is to earn
a profit from favourable movements in market rates. Accordingly, these
transactions are reflected in the accounts at their fair value and gains and losses
shown in the profit and loss account as dealing profits.

Risk

The board is responsible for determining the long-term strategy of the business,
the markets in which the Group will operate and the level of risk acceptable to
the Group in each area of its business. The principal risks arising from the
Group'’s use of financial instruments are as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from extending credit in all forms in the Group’s banking and
trading activities, where there is a possibility that a counterparty may default.
The Group has dedicated standards, policies and procedures to control and
monitor all such risks. Lloyds TSB Group Risk’s responsibilities in respect of
credit risk include the following:

« Formulation of high level credit policies designed to ensure a balanced and
managed approach to the identification and mitigation of credit risk. These
policies provide a standard framework within which Group businesses
structure their individual policies and rules. Lloyds TSB Group Risk reviews,
approves and monitors credit policy documents established for individual
businesses.

Provision of lending guidelines. These define the responsibilities for lending
officers and provide a disciplined and focused benchmark for sound credit
decisions. Clear guidance is provided on the Group’s attitude towards and
appetite for credit exposure on different market sectors, industries and
products.
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47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Counterparty limits. Exposure to individual counterparties, groups of
counterparties or customer segments is controlled through a tiered
hierarchy of delegated sanctioning authorities. Approval requirements for
each decision are based on the transaction amount, the customer’s aggregate
facilities, credit risk ratings and the nature and term of the risk. Regular
reports on significant credit exposures are provided to the group executive
committee and board.

Provision of a group rating system. All business units are required to operate
an authorised rating system that complies with the Group’s standard
methodology. The Group uses a ‘Master Scale’ rating structure with ratings
corresponding to a range of probabilities of future default.

Establishment and maintenance of the Group’s large exposure policy.
Exposure to individual counterparties, groups of counterparties or customer
risk segments is controlled through a tiered hierarchy of delegated sanctioning
authorities. Approval requirements for each decision are based on the
transaction amount, the customer’s aggregate facilities, credit risk ratings and
the nature and term of the risk.

Control of bank exposures. In-house proprietary rating systems are used to
approve bank facilities on a group basis.

Monitoring of scorecards. The Group utilises statistically-based decisioning
techniques (primarily credit scoring and performance scoring) for its principal
consumer lending portfolios. Lloyds TSB Group Risk reviews and monitors
new and material changes to scorecards.

Control of cross-border exposures. Country limits are authorised and managed
by a dedicated unit, using an in-house rating system which takes into account
economic and political factors.

Maintenance of a centralised facilities database. Lloyds TSB Group Risk
operates a centralised database of large corporate, sovereign and bank
facilities designed to ensure that a consistent aggregation policy is maintained
throughout the Group.

Formulation of concentration limits on certain industries and sectors and
monitoring and controlling residual value risk exposure. Lloyds TSB Group
Risk sets sector caps that reflect risk appetite and monitors exposures to
prevent excessive concentration of risk.

Portfolio analysis. In conjunction with Lloyds TSB Group Risk, group
businesses identify and define portfolios of credit and related risk exposures
and the key benchmarks, behaviours and characteristics by which those
portfolios are managed in terms of credit risk exposure. This entails the
production and analysis of regular portfolio monitoring reports for review by
Lloyds TSB Group Risk.

Communication and provision of general guidance on all credit-related risk
issues, including regulatory changes and environmental risk policy, to
promote consistent and best practice throughout the Group.

Day-to-day credit management and asset quality within each business unit is
the primary responsibility of the business unit directors. Each business unit has
in place established credit processes which are consistent with corresponding
Group policies. Authority to delegate lending authorities within business units
rests with officers holding divisional delegated lending authority. All material
authorities are advised to Lloyds TSB Group Risk.

Specialist units are established within group business units to provide, for
example: intensive management and control; security perfection, maintenance
and retention; expertise in documentation for lending and associated products;
sector-specific expertise; and legal services applicable to the particular market
place and product range offered by the business unit.

Credit risk exposures in the insurance businesses arise primarily from holding
investments and from exposure to reinsurers. Control is exercised over those
exposures through a suitable combination of formal limits, credit policy
parameters and high level committee oversight.
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47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses being incurred as a result of adverse movements
in interest or exchange rates or other market variables. Market risk arises in all
areas of the Group’s activities and is managed by a variety of different
techniques.

Trading activities are restricted to a few highly specialist trading centres and the
level of exposure is strictly controlled and monitored within approved limits
locally and centrally.

A variety of techniques are used to quantify the market risk arising from the
Group’s banking and trading activities. These reflect the nature of the business
activity, and include simple interest rate gapping, open exchange positions,
sensitivity analysis and Value at Risk (VaR). Stress testing and scenario analysis
are also used in certain portfolios, and at Group level, to simulate extreme
conditions to supplement these core measures.

Various parameters are used to calculate the value at risk on a given portfolio of
positions, thus avoiding undue reliance on a single measure. Based on the
commonly quoted 95 per cent confidence level, assuming positions are held
overnight and using observation periods of the preceding three years, during
2004 the value at risk on the Group’s global trading averaged £1.3 million
(2003: £1.5 million) with a maximum of £2.0 million (2003: £2.6 million)
and a minimum of £0.8 million (2003: £0.9 million). The figure at
31 December 2004 was £0.9 million (2003: £1.0 million).

Lloyds TSB Group Balance Sheet Management (GBSM) specifically focuses on
the management of interest rate risk in the Group’s retail portfolios, including
mortgages, and in the Group’s capital funds. GBSM reports to an Asset and
Liability Committee. The Group’s policy is to optimise the stability of future net
interest income, which is achieved by entering into hedging transactions using
interest rate swaps and other financial instruments.

Within the insurance businesses the with-profits funds are managed in
accordance with the relevant fund’s Principles and Practices of Financial
Management. This leads to assets and liabilities that are mismatched with the
aim of generating a higher rate of return to meet policyholders’ expectations.
Unit-linked liabilities are matched with the same assets that are used to define
the liability but future fee income is dependent upon the performance of these
assets.

Liquidity risk

A Group Liquidity Policy is in place which requires a common methodology for
measuring liquidity across the Group. The methodology derives a liquidity ratio
calculated by taking the sum of liquid assets, five-day wholesale inflows and
back-up lines, and then dividing this by the sum of five-day wholesale outflows
and a percentage of retail maturities and contingent claims drawable over the
next five days.

The Liquidity Policy requires all authorised local treasury operations to maintain
a liquidity ratio of over 100 per cent, in addition to ensuring compliance with
local regulatory requirements.

It is the responsibility of local line management to ensure that the Liquidity
Policy is met, and the sources and maturities of assets and liabilities are
continually managed and appropriately diversified to avoid any undue
concentration as market conditions evolve. Compliance is monitored by
regular liquidity returns to Lloyds TSB Group Risk Management.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events. For internal purposes,
reputational impact is also included.

Business units have primary responsibility for identifying and managing their
operational risks. They employ internal control techniques to reduce their
likelihood or impact to tolerable levels within the Group’s risk appetite. Where
appropriate, risk is mitigated by way of insurance.
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47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Lloyds TSB Group Risk’s responsibilities in relation to operational risk include
defining high-level operational risk policies to ensure a comprehensive and
consistent approach to the identification and management of operational risk;
implementation of a Group-wide standard methodology to ensure consistency
in the identification, assessment and management of operational risk;
communication and provision of general guidance on operational risk related
issues, including regulatory changes and developments in the measurement
and management of operational risk, to promote best practice throughout the
Group; continuous review and improvement of all aspects of operational risk
management to reflect developments in industry best practice and regulatory
requirements; approval from a risk perspective of all new products launched
throughout the Group, to ensure that risks inherent in new products have been
identified and mitigated.

Insurance risk

The Group offers insurance products to its customers, and actively reviews the
extent to which the associated risk is underwritten internally, or reinsured with
external underwriters.

The Financial Services Authority sets down minimum requirements for solvency
and reserving for all classes of insurance, which are carefully monitored by the
relevant business units within the Group. The retained risk level is carefully
controlled and monitored, with close attention being paid to the analysis of
underwriting experience, product design, policy wordings, adequacy of
reserves, solvency management and regulatory requirements.

General insurance exposure to accumulations of risk and possible catastrophes
is mitigated by reinsurance arrangements which are broadly spread over
different reinsurers. Appropriate reinsurance arrangements also apply within the
life and pensions businesses. Options and guarantees are incorporated in new
insurance products only after careful consideration of the risk management
issues that they present. This occurs as part of the new product approval
process. Expenses are monitored by an analysis of experience relative to
budget. Reasons for any significant divergence from expectation are investigated
and remedial action taken. Persistency rates are regularly assessed by reference
to appropriate risk factors.

Derivatives

Derivatives are used to meet the financial needs of customers, as part of the
Group’s trading activities and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in
interest and exchange rates. The principal derivatives used by the Group are
interest rate and exchange rate contracts; particular attention is paid to the
liquidity of the markets and products in which the Group trades to ensure that
there are no undue concentrations of activity and risk.

Interest rate related contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and options. An interest rate swap is an agreement between two
parties to exchange fixed and floating interest payments, based upon interest
rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal
amounts. Forward rate agreements are contracts for the payment of the
difference between a specified rate of interest and a reference rate, applied to a
notional principal amount at a specific date in the future. An interest rate option
gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the right, but not the obligation, to
fix the rate of interest on a future loan or deposit, for a specified period and
commencing on a specified future date.

Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts,
currency swaps and options. A forward foreign exchange contract is an
agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate. Currency swaps generally involve the exchange of
interest payment obligations denominated in different currencies; the exchange
of principal can be notional or actual. A currency option gives the buyer, on
payment of a premium, the right, but not the obligation, to sell a specified
amount of currency at an agreed rate of exchange on or before a specified future
date.
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47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Equity derivatives are also used by the Group as part of its equity based retail
product activity to eliminate the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in various
international stock exchange indices. Index-linked equity options are purchased
which give the Group the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specified
amount of equities, or basket of equities in the form of published indices on or
before a specified future date.

Derivatives contracts expose the Group to both market risk and credit risk. Only
a few highly specialist trading centres within the Group are permitted to enter
into derivative contracts and the level of exposure to interest rate and exchange
rate movements and other market variables is strictly controlled and monitored
within approved limits.

Unlike on-balance sheet instruments the principal amount of the contract does
not represent the Group’s real exposure to credit risk which is limited to the
current cost of replacing contracts with a positive value to the Group, should the
counterparty default. To reduce credit risk the Group uses a variety of credit
enhancement technigues such as netting and collateralisation, where security is
provided against the exposure.

a Derivatives

Group

Trading

The notional principal amounts and fair values (which, after netting, are the
carrying values) of trading instruments entered into with third parties were as
follows:

Notional Fair values

principal

amount Assets  Liabilities
31 December 2004 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 113,601 1,995 2,632
Currency swaps 11,850 426 628
Options purchased 2,059 44 -
Options written 1,922 - 41

129,432 2,465 3,301
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 276,476 3,118 3,792
Forward rate agreements 62,797 28 24
Options purchased 9,679 78 -
Options written 7,430 - 163
Futures 48,278 - -
404,660 3,224 3,979

Equity and other contracts 4,239 282 19
Effect of netting (3,956) (3,956)
Balances arising from off-balance sheet
financial instruments 2,015 3,343
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Notional Fair values
principal
amount Assets  Liabilities
31 December 2003 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 76,368 1,669 2,127
Currency swaps 10,793 328 557
Options purchased 1,678 55 14
Options written 1,542 - 39
90,381 2,052 2,737
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 238,384 3,346 4,180
Forward rate agreements 54,213 29 29
Options purchased 10,475 145 -
Options written 5,265 - 162
Futures 38,626 - -
346,963 3,620 4,371
Equity and other contracts 5,407 693 387
Effect of netting (3,776) (3,776)
Balances arising from off-balance sheet
financial instruments 2,489 3,719

Non-trading

Through intra company and intra group transactions, Group companies
establish non-trading derivatives positions with the Group’s independent
trading operations, which then enter into similar positions with third parties.
The notional principal amounts and fair values of non-trading instruments
entered into with third parties were as follows:

Notional Fair values
principal
amount Positive  Negative
31 December 2004 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 155 3
Currency swaps 60 2
Options purchased 1 - -
216 5 3
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 34,196 143 350
Forward rate agreements 2,921 6 -
Options written 111 - -
37,228 149 350
Effect of netting (123) (123)
31 230
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47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Notional Fair values
principal
amount Positive  Negative
31 December 2003 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 171 13 5
Currency swaps 459 28 10
630 41 15
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 30,816 256 260
Forward rate agreements 7,188 1 1
Options written 40 - -
38,044 257 261
Effect of netting (165) (165)
133 111

The aggregate carrying value of non-trading derivatives with a positive fair value
was an asset of £96 million (2003: an asset of £132 million) and with a
negative fair value was a liability of £35 million (2003: a liability of
£71 million).

The maturity of the notional principal amounts and replacement cost of both
trading and non-trading instruments entered into with third parties was:

Under ltob Over 5
1 year years years Total
£m £m £m £m

31 December 2004
Exchange rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 117,027 8,143 4,478 129,648
Replacement cost 2,015 179 276 2,470
Interest rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 224,427 165,524 51,937 441,888
Replacement cost 521 1,426 1,426 3,373
Equity and other contracts:
Notional principal amount 583 3,358 298 4,239
Replacement cost 6 258 18 282
Total:
Notional principal amount 342,037 177,025 56,713 575,775
Replacement cost 2,542 1,863 1,720 6,125
31 December 2003
Exchange rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 79,677 7,005 4,329 91,011
Replacement cost 1,753 141 199 2,093
Interest rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 175,306 161,834 47,867 385,007
Replacement cost 578 1,660 1,539 3,777
Equity and other contracts:
Notional principal amount 2,886 1,965 556 5,407
Replacement cost 523 115 55 693
Total:
Notional principal amount 257,869 170,804 52,752 481,425
Replacement cost 2,854 1,916 1,793 6,563
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The notional principal amount does not represent the Group’s real exposure to
credit risk, which is limited to the current cost of replacing contracts at current
market rates should the counterparties default.

Net replacement cost represents the total positive fair value of all derivative
contracts at the balance sheet date, after allowing for the offset of all negative
fair values where the Group has a legal right of set-off with the counterparty
concerned.

An analysis of the net replacement cost of both trading and non-trading
instruments entered into with third parties by counterparty type is set out below;
the Group's exposure is further reduced by qualifying collateral held.

2004 2003
£m £m
OECD banks 855 1,272
Other 1,191 1,350
Net replacement cost 2,046 2,622
Qualifying collateral held (592) (416)
Potential credit risk exposure 1,454 2,206
Bank
Trading

The notional principal amounts and fair values (which, after netting, are the
carrying values) of trading instruments entered into with third parties were as
follows:

Notional Fair values

principal

amount Assets  Liabilities
31 December 2004 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 115,594 2,036 2,662
Currency swaps 12,693 601 633
Options purchased 2,290 45 -
Options written 1,938 - 44

132,515 2,682 3,339
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 283,534 3,328 3,859
Forward rate agreements 62,797 28 24
Options purchased 9,783 79 -
Options written 7,484 - 163
Futures 48,278 - -
411,876 3,435 4,046

Equity and other contracts 7,098 282 263
Effect of netting (3,956) (3,956)
Balances arising from off-balance sheet
financial instruments 2,443 3,692

47 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Notional Fair values
principal
amount Assets  Liabilities
31 December 2003 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 77,641 1,730 2,157
Currency swaps 11,637 451 561
Options purchased 1,742 56 16
Options written 1,542 - 39
92,562 2,237 2,773
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 245,766 3,607 4,279
Forward rate agreements 54,246 29 29
Options purchased 10,475 145 -
Options written 5,307 2 162
Futures 38,626 - -
354,420 3,783 4,470
Equity and other contracts 7,967 693 535
Effect of netting (3,776) (3,776)
Balances arising from off-balance sheet
financial instruments 2,937 4,002

Non-trading
The notional principal amounts and fair values of non-trading instruments
entered into with third parties were as follows:

Notional Fair values

principal

amount Positive  Negative
31 December 2004 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 171 4 4
Currency swaps 69 3 -

240 7 4

Interest rate contracts:

Interest rate swaps 36,156 143 359

Forward rate agreements 2,967 6 -
39,123 149 359
Effect of netting (123) (123)
33 240
Notional Fair values
principal
amount Positive  Negative
31 December 2003 £m £m £m
Exchange rate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 156 21 4
Currency swaps 469 29 10
625 50 14

Interest rate contracts:

Interest rate swaps 32,754 263 258

Forward rate agreements 7,188 1 1
39,942 264 259
Effect of netting (165) (165)

149 108
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The maturity of the notional principal amounts and replacement cost of both
trading and non-trading instruments entered into with third parties was:

Under 1tob Over 5

1 year years years Total
£m £m £m £m

31 December 2004
Exchange rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 119,283 8,994 4,478 132,755
Replacement cost 2,059 354 276 2,689
Interest rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 226,396 169,648 54,955 450,999
Replacement cost 528 1,500 1,556 3,584
Equity contracts:
Notional principal amount 946 5,556 596 7,098
Replacement cost 6 258 18 282
Total:
Notional principal amount 346,625 184,198 60,029 590,852
Replacement cost 2,593 2,112 1,850 6,555
31 December 2003
Exchange rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 80,994 7,864 4,329 93,187
Replacement cost 1,823 265 199 2,287
Interest rate contracts:
Notional principal amount 176,688 166,655 51,019 394,362
Replacement cost 587 1,775 1,685 4,047
Equity and other contracts:
Notional principal amount 3,317 3,539 1,111 7,967
Replacement cost 523 115 55 693
Total:
Notional principal amount 260,999 178,058 56,459 495,516
Replacement cost 2,933 2,155 1,939 7,027

An analysis of the net replacement cost of both trading and non-trading
instruments entered into with third parties by counterparty type is set out below;
the Bank’s exposure is further reduced by qualifying collateral held.

2004 2003

£m £m

OECD banks 1,288 1,741
Other 1,188 1,345
Net replacement cost 2,476 3,086
Qualifying collateral held (592) (416)
Potential credit risk exposure 1,884 2,670
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b Interest rate sensitivity gap analysis for the non-trading book

The table below summarises the repricing mismatches of the Group’s non-trading assets and liabilities. ltems are allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of
the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the maturity date.

6 months 1 year 5 years
or less or less or less Non-
3 months but over but over but over Over interest Trading

orless 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years bearing book Total
As at 31 December 2004 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 43 40 - 5 - - 4 92
Loans and advances to banks 19,663 1,351 154 470 82 602 1,243 23,565
Loans and advances to customers 99,356 6,443 6,937 36,783 6,203 (54) 313 155,981
Debt securities and equity shares 8,193 1,009 770 1,976 2,527 (68) 11,002 25,409
Other assets 121 - - 5 1 17,382 4,271 21,780
Total assets 127,376 8,843 7,861 39,239 8,813 17,862 16,833 226,827
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks 36,802 2,009 289 122 81 212 223 39,738
Customer accounts 109,789 1,083 823 5,639 538 3,891 591 122,354
Debt securities in issue 18,764 1,848 1,171 1,435 3,999 - - 27,217
Other liabilities 292 - - - - 9,008 5,937 15,237
Subordinated liabilities — loan capital 2,299 459 - 1,652 6,069 150 - 10,629
Minority interests and shareholders’ funds - - - - - 11,629 23 11,652
Internal funding of trading business (6,577) 635 129 (3,330) (916) - 10,059 -
Total liabilities 161,369 6,034 2,412 5,518 9,771 24,890 16,833 226,827
Off-balance sheet items 13,254 (3,902) (2,424) (9,468) 2,540 - - -
Interest rate repricing gap (20,739) (1,093) 3,025 24,253 1,582 (7,028) - -
Cumulative interest rate repricing gap (20,739) (21,832) (18,807) 5,446 7,028 - - -

6 months 1 year 5 years
or less or less or less Non-
3 months  butover  butover  but over Over interest Trading

orless 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years bearing book Total
As at 31 December 2003 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 408 48 65 6 3 - 9 539
Loans and advances to banks 10,686 1,311 463 746 86 366 1,889 15,547
Loans and advances to customers 88,466 4,681 5,549 30,777 6,171 (51) 1,424 137,017
Debt securities and equity shares 8,718 606 279 1,856 2,372 (55) 15,351 29,127
Other assets 101 - 17 8 - 16,055 5,287 21,468
Total assets 108,379 6,646 6,373 33,393 8,632 16,315 23,960 203,698
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks 22,254 635 262 286 99 205 214 23,955
Customer accounts 104,621 705 876 5,227 1,173 3,749 593 116,944
Debt securities in issue 18,375 1,507 1,040 1,210 3,790 - - 25,922
Other liabilities 300 - - - - 7,933 6,348 14,581
Subordinated liabilities — loan capital 2,689 1,089 - 677 6,231 150 - 10,836
Minority interests and shareholders’ funds - - - - - 11,442 18 11,460
Internal funding of trading business (11,528) (810) (412) (3,217) (820) - 16,787 -
Total liabilities 136,711 3,126 1,766 4,183 10,473 23,479 23,960 203,698
Off-balance sheet items 6,930 (1,365) (4,049) (2,596) 1,080 - - -
Interest rate repricing gap (21,402) 2,155 558 26,614 (761) (7,164) - -
Cumulative interest rate repricing gap (21,402) (19,247) (18,689) 7,925 7,164 - - -

The table above does not take into account the effect of interest rate options used by the Group to hedge its exposure; details of options are given in note 47a.
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c Fair value analysis

The table below shows a comparison by category of book values and fair values
of the Group’s on-balance sheet financial assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2004

Trading book Non-trading book

Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury bills and other
eligible bills 4 4 88 90
Loans and advances to
banks and customers 1,556 1,556 177,990 178,453
Debt securities and equity shares 11,002 11,002 14,407 14,443
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks and customers 814 814 161,278 161,242
Debt securities in issue - - 27,217 26,924
Subordinated liabilities - - 10,629 11,920

As at 31 December 2003 Trading book Non-trading book

Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury bills and other
eligible bills 9 9 530 523
Loans and advances to
banks and customers 3,313 3,313 149,251 150,636
Debt securities and equity shares 15,351 15,351 13,776 13,885
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks and customers 807 807 140,092 140,143
Debt securities in issue - - 25,922 26,254
Subordinated liabilities - - 10,836 11,916

The disclosures in this note cover all on-balance sheet financial instruments:;
fair values of all derivative instruments are disclosed in note 47a.

Fair values are determined by reference to quoted market prices or, where no
market price is available, using internal models which discount expected future
cashflows at prevailing interest rates.

Fair values have not been calculated for sundry debtors and creditors in the
trading book.
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d Currency exposures

Structural currency exposures

Structural currency exposures arise from the Group’s investments in its overseas
operations. The structural position is managed after having regard to the
currency composition of the Group’s risk-weighted assets, the objective being to
limit the effect of exchange rate movements on the published risk asset ratio.

The Group’s main overseas operations are in the Americas and Europe. Details
of the Group’s structural foreign currency exposures are as follows:

2004 2003
£m £m

Functional currency of Group operation:
Euro 289 287
US dollar 271 255
Swiss franc 58 104
Other non-sterling 202 200
Total 820 846

Non-structural currency exposures
All foreign exchange exposures in the non-trading book are transferred to the
trading area where they are monitored and controlled.

e Unrecognised gains and losses on hedging instruments

The Group uses a variety of financial instruments to hedge exposures in its
banking book; these hedges are accounted for on an accruals basis, in line with
the underlying instruments being hedged. Any gains or losses that would occur
if these instruments were carried at market value are therefore not recognised.

At 31 December 2004, the unrecognised gains on financial instruments used
for hedging were £272 million (2003: £303 million) and unrecognised losses
were £424 million (2003: £219 million).

The net gains arising in 2003 and earlier years and recognised in 2004
amounted to £3 million. Net losses of £228 million arose in 2004 but were not
recognised in the year.

Of the net losses of £152 million at 31 December 2004, £49 million of net
losses are expected to be recognised in the year ending 31 December 2005 and
£103 million of net losses in later years.
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